
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PLC

ANNUAL REPORT

2017



PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PLC
Annual Report 2017

1

 C O N T E N T S
  Page
  

1. Vision and Mission 2

2. Notice of Meeting 3

3. Corporate Information 4

4. Financial Highlights 5

5. Financial Calendar 5

6. Chairman’s Review 6

7. Board of Directors 7

8. Senior Management 9

9. Annual Report of the Board of Directors 10

10. Directors’ Interest Register 13

11. Corporate Governance 14

12. Audit Committee Report 19

13. Remuneration Committee Report 20

14. Related Party Transactions Review Committee Report 21

15. Financial Statements 

  Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 23

  Report of the Auditor General 24

  Statement of Financial Position 26

  Statement of Comprehensive Income 27

  Statement of Changes in Equity 28

  Statement of Cash Flows 29

  Notes to the Financial Statements 30

16. Information to Shareholders and Investors 62

17. Financial Information 

  Six Year Summary 65

  

 The Form of Proxy is enclosed 

  



PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PLC  
Annual Report 2017

2

VISION AND MISSION

           VISION

“To make Bank of Ceylon Headquarters building the benchmark in
    facilities management in Sri Lanka.”

MISSION

“Conduct of high quality, proactive and preventive maintenance with 
            evolving modernisation of services of the
Bank of Ceylon Headquarters building to provide a safe and 
                comfortable environment with uninterrupted
services to occupants and Bank of Ceylon customers through a 
    collaborative team of professionals.”
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NOTICE OF MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty Eighth Annual 
General Meeting of Property Development PLC will be held at 
3.00 p.m. on 30 May 2018 at the Auditorium, Floor 3, Bank of 
Ceylon Headquarters Building, BOC Square, No. 01, Bank of 
Ceylon Mawatha, Colombo 01, for the following purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors and 
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
December 2017 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. The Auditor General to be Auditor of the Company according 
to the 19th amendment to the Constitution of Sri Lanka.

3. To approve the donations and contributions made by the 
Directors during the year under review and to authorise 
the Board to determine donations and contributions for the 
ensuring year.

4. To appoint Mr K K U Wijeyesekera as a Director of the 
Company and pursuant to Section 211 of the Companies 
Act No.07 of 2007 the Company intends to propose the 
following resolution as an ordinary resolution.

 “RESOLVED THAT Mr K K U Wijeyesekera who has 
attained the age of 70 years be and is hereby appointed as 
a Director of the Company, and it is hereby declared that 
the age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the 
Companies Act No.07 of 2007 shall not apply to the said 
Director Mr K K U Wijeyesekera”.

5. To declare a First & Final Divident of Rs. 3.50 Per Share for 
the year ended 31 December 2017, as recommended by 
the Directors.

Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting 
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her 
stead.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. A member wishing to vote by proxy at the meeting may use 
the enclosed form of proxy.

4. The completed form of proxy should be deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company at Floor 19, Bank of 
Ceylon Headquarters Building, BOC Square, No.01, Bank 
of Ceylon Mawatha, Colombo 01, not later than 3.00 p.m. 
on 28 May 2018 being 48 hours before the time appointed 
for holding of the meeting.

5. For security reasons it is necessary that you bring with you, 
your National Identity Card when attending the meeting.

By Order of the Board

S S P Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd 
Secretaries

09 April 2018
Colombo
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NAME OF COMPANY

Property Development PLC

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER 

PQ 106

LEGAL FORM

A quoted public company with limited liability incorporated in Sri 
Lanka on 15 October 1980.

The Company was re-registered under the Companies Act No.07 
of 2007 on 13 December 2007.

CURRENT DIRECTORATE 

Mr K A K Jayatilake - Chairman

Mr W T L Weeratne - Deputy Chairman

Mr W P R P H Fonseka - Director

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera - Director

Mr R P Halwala - Director

Mr S M De Zoysa
(Resigned w.e.f. 21.09.2017)

- Director

Mr D N L Fernando
(Appointed w.e.f. 21.02.2018)

- Alternate Director to
Mr  W P R P H Fonseka

MANAGEMENT

Mr G C Rajapaksha
Chief Executive Officer

Ms M D Dissanayake
Manager Finance

Mr M W A C Wijesekara
Manager Maintenance

Mr A R M Irfan
Senior Executive (HR & Admin.)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Floor 19, Bank of Ceylon Headquarters Building 
BOC Square, No.01, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha
Colombo 01
Sri Lanka.
Tel. : 2544328
Fax : 2544329
Email : pdlhrm@sltnet.lk

SUBSIDIARY

Koladeniya Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd
Floor 19, Bank of Ceylon Headquarters Building 
BOC Square, No.01, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha, 
Colombo 01.

SECRETARIES

S S P Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
No. 101, Inner Flower Road
Colombo 03.
Tel. : 2573894
Fax : 2573609
Email : sspsec@sltnet.lk

AUDITORS

The Auditor General
The Auditor General’s Department
No. 306/72, Polduwa Road
Battaramulla.

(Appointed in terms of provisions of Article 154 of the 
Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of  
Sri Lanka)

BANKERS

Bank of Ceylon
Corporate Branch
Bank of Ceylon Headquarters Building
BOC Square, No. 01, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha
Colombo 01.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016

Income, Rs Mn 1,028.2 932.0

Profit before tax, Rs Mn 657.6 615.7

Profit after tax, Rs Mn 484.3 467.8

Earnings per share, Rs 7.34 7.09

Gross Dividend (First & Final), 
Rs Mn Dividend for 2015 paid in 2016

- 198.0

Per Share Dividend, Rs - 3.00

Gross Dividend (First & Final), 
Rs Mn Dividend for 2016 paid in 2017

- 990.0

Per Share Dividend, Rs - 15.00

Shareholders’ funds, Rs Mn 3,710.3 3,284.0

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2017

1st Quarter as at March   - 04.05.2017

2nd Quarter as at June   - 11.08.2017

3rd Quarter as at September  - 10.11.2017

4th Quarter as at December  - 23.02.2018

Annual Report    - 04.04.2018

Meetings

37th Annual General Meeting  - 04.05.2017

38th Annual General Meeting  - 30.05.2018

HISTORICAL NOTE

In the late 1970’s as business opportunities for the Bank of 
Ceylon rapidly increased, the need for a centralized head-office 
was perceived. The Bank therefore, decided to construct a 
Headquarters Building, at a site at Echelon Square, offered on 
a 99-year lease by the Urban Development Authority. Property 
Development PLC (PDL) was incorporated for this purpose on 
15 October 1980, with an objective “to execute or engage in any 
construction or property development projects which are deemed 
expedient and in the interests of the Company”.

The first public share issue was in May 1981, when 55,000,000 
shares were taken up and fully subscribed. In October 1984, a 
Rights Issue of 11,000,000 shares at par, in the proportion of one 
new share for every five shares held, was fully subscribed. The 
Stated Capital of the Company is Rs. 660 Million.

Design and construction work on the Building commenced in early 
1981, and the Building was partly completed by 25 January 1985, 
substantially occupied by October 1987. The total built-up area of 
the Building is about 600,000 sq.ft. in 1996 and 1997, the Building 
was damaged as a result of bomb explosions in its environs and 
restoration work was completed by December 2001, without 
disruption to continued occupation. The Building, a landmark in 
the city of Colombo, presently houses over 2,000 persons.

The Company made a strategic investment in December 2010 in 
Koladeniya Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd. Construction of the Koladeniya 
Mini Hydropower Plant of 1200 kW commenced in January 2011 
and commenced its commercial operation, i.e. generating hydro 
electricity and delivering to the Ceylon Electricity Board National 
Grid on 25 April 2012. 
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to submit 
the Annual Report and Statements of Accounts of Property 
Development PLC (PDL) Group for the financial year ended 31 
December 2017.

Financial Performance

During the financial year under review, the Group recorded a total 
income of Rs. 1,028 million compared to Rs. 932 million in the 
previous year. The Group’s operating profit before tax was Rs. 
657.6 million. The corresponding figure for the previous year was 
Rs. 615.7 million. Profit after tax for 2017 was Rs. 484.3 million, 
compared to Rs. 467.8 million in 2016. Profit before taxation of 
Rs. 657.6 million reflects an increase of approximately 6.8% from 
Rs. 615.7 million achieved last year, whilst the profit after tax for 
the year of Rs. 484.3 million reflects an increase of approximately 
3.5%. Revenue increased by 15.0% over the previous year, was 
mainly due to increase of the rent from Rs. 72 to Rs. 97 per sq.ft. 
per month with effect from 01 July 2016 and income received from 
our subsidiary, Koladeniya Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd amounting to Rs 
88.4 million compared to Rs 75.8 million received in 2016.

Total expenditure increased by approximately 17.2% over the 
previous year, mainly due to increase in Municipal rates, as the 
terms and conditions pertaining to payment of Municipal rates had 
been revised in the Tenancy Agreement entered in to between 
PDL and BOC with effect from 01 July 2016 and also due to 
expenses incurred on carrying out a Building Audit (Technical) as 
the Building is over 32 years old.

Investments

I am also pleased to report that the Koladeniya Hydro Power Plant 
which was commissioned on 25 April 2012, continued to deliver 
hydro electricity to the national grid under the Standardised Power 
Purchase Agreement signed with the Ceylon Electricity Board. 
The revenue during the financial year under review has been 
much better than the previous year and as well as estimates at 
the feasibility stage, mainly due to good rainfall received in the 
catchment area of the Power Plant compared to  the previous 
year.

While concentrating on our main line of business, the Company 
continued to focus on the high maintenance standards set for 
building services of the BOC Tower. The rehabilitation programme 

for plant and machinery formulated by the Company continued 
during the year under review. The existing standby Emergency 
Generators have been in operation over 30 years and action has 
been initiated to replace them by end of 2018, in order ensure  
that critical loads of the Building are being taken care of in case of 
failure of CEB power and stand by power generators.

Looking ahead we will remain focused on our core business 
activity of maintaining a high degree of operational availability and 
efficiency in all services within the Bank of Ceylon Headquarters.

Dividends

Your Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a First and Final 
Dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share for the year 2017.

Appreciation

My deep appreciation is extended to my Fellow Directors who 
have at all times extended their fullest support and shared 
their valued expertise towards the betterment of the Company. 
Together with the other Directors, I wish to thank the Management 
and the staff, for their committed contributions they have made 
towards the continued good performance of the Company during 
the year 2017.

I also extend our thanks to the Bank of Ceylon, our anchor tenant 
and all statutory authorities with whom we have worked during the 
year. Finally, I take this opportunity to express our appreciation to 
our valued shareholders and other stakeholders for their trust and 
commitment to the Company.

I remain very enthusiastic about PDL and its future growth 
potential.

K A K Jayatilake
Chairman

21 March 2018
Colombo
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr K A K Jayatilake - Chairman

Mr Jayatilake was appointed as Chairman of Board of Directors 
of Property Development PLC with effect from 01 February 2016.

He holds a B.Sc. Special Degree (Hons.) from the University of 
Colombo, Postgraduate Diploma in Development Administration, 
from Sri Lanka Institute of Development Administration and 
a M.Sc. in Agriculture & Natural Resource Management from 
University of Tasmania, Australia.

He is in possession of a more than 40 years of experience in 
the fields of designing, planning and implementation of variety 
of large scale development projects, including formulation of 
regional physical master plans, Western Region Megapolis plan, 
tourism infrastructure, hydro power, highways, multi-purpose 
buildings, agriculture and water supply. He has held several senior 
management positions in various Government Organizations 
including Ministry of Planning and Plan Implementation, Central 
Environmental Authority as well as at United States Agency for 
International Development. He has also served in several foreign 
funded overseas assignments in Bangladesh, Uganda, Nepal, 
India and Bhutan. He is involved with the World Bank and Asian 
Development Bank as an International Consultant in several 
projects implemented regionally.

He currently holds the position of the Managing Director at EML 
Consultants (Pvt) Ltd and Chairman of the Institute of International 
Development Training (IIDT) & Dellogistics International (Pvt) Ltd. 
He is also the Chairman of Koladeniya Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd.

Mr W T L Weeratne - Deputy Chairman

Mr Weeratne was appointed to the Board of Property Development 
PLC on 01 February 2016. He Holds a Postgraduate Higher 
Diploma in Marketing from the Chartered Institute of Marketing 
(UK). In addition he is a Certified Resource Person of IBM 
Software Group in Marketing and Pre-sales.

He held various Senior Management positions in the fields of 
Insurance, Marketing, Procurement, Process Improvement, 
Manufacturing and Information Technology. He has an illustrious 
carrier spanning over 23 years in local as well as multinational 
companies where he has served as Director/Group Chief 
Executive Officer of Magline Group of Companies, Executive 
Director at E-Channeling PLC, Chief Operating Officer/Head 
of Operations at Midware Technologies and General Manager, 
Special Projects at Brandix Lanka Ltd.

He was instrumental in setting up Serandib Marinas International 
(Pvt) Ltd the pioneering venture to set up and manage marina 
operations in Sri Lanka and he served as the Chief Executive 
Officer.

Currently Mr Weeratne holds the position as the Coordinating 
Secretary to Hon of Minister of Public Enterprise Development at 
the Ministry of Public Enterprise Development.

Mr W P R P H Fonseka - Director

Mr Fonseka was appointed to the Board of Property Development 
PLC with effect from 12 February 2016.

He holds a Special Degree in Business Administration from the 
University of Sri Jayewardenepura, Postgraduate Diploma in 
Management from Postgraduate Institute of Management and a 
Masters Degree in Business Administration from the University 
of Southern Queensland, Australia. He is a Fellow Member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and an Associate 
Member of the Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka. 

Mr Fonseka started his banking carrier in branch operations and 
counts over 28 years of extensive experience in all aspect of 
commercial banking. He has specialized in financial management 
and strategic planning and implemented of an effective corporate 
planning process, budgetary control system etc., in Bank of 
Ceylon. He has also been a member of the corporate management 
of Bank of Ceylon since 2012.

He held a range of senior management positions including Budget 
& Strategic Planning, Retail Banking and Finance & Planning in 
Bank of Ceylon.

He is a Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Transitional 
Lanka Solutions (Pvt) Ltd and a Director of Lanka Securities (Pvt) 
Ltd and Ceybank Assets Management Limited. He serves as a 
Director of Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka & Finance PLC and also 
MBSL Insurance Company (Pvt) Ltd. He is an alternate Director 
of LankaClear (Pvt) Ltd. Mr Fonseka also acts as the Chairman of 
the Audit Committees of Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka & Finance 
PLC and LankaClear (Pvt) Ltd.

At present he serves as the Chief Financial Officer/Deputy 
General Manager (International, Treasury & Investment) of Bank 
of Ceylon.

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera - Director

Mr Wijeyesekera was appointed to the Board of Directors of the 
Company on 05 June 2015. He was also a Director of Koladeniya 
Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd from 25 June 2015 to 01 February 2016.

He is a Planter by profession, and a Fellow of the Institute of 
Plantation Management.

He commenced his planting career with the Sterling Tea Plantation 
Company of James Finlay & Co. Ltd and later with George Steuart 
& Co. Ltd and upon nationalization of estates in 1975 he served 
the Janatha Estate Development Board as Superintendent of 
several tea plantations in the up-country. He also held office as 
Dickoya District Chairman of the Ceylon Planters’ Society and as 
Chairman of the Kandy District Planters’ Association of Ceylon. He 
was appointed Chairman of Board 1 (Hatton, Dickoya, Maskeliya 
and Bogawantalawa Ranges) of Sri Lanka State Plantations 
Corporation, and later as Director General of Nuwara Eliya / Uda 
Pussellawa Zone of the Janatha Estate Development Board.

Mr Wijeyesekera was also the former Chairman of the Sri Lanka 
Cement Corporation and Director of Lafarge Mahaweli Cement 
(Pvt) Ltd.

He served on the Board of Director of UB Finance Co. Ltd (a 
Subsidiary of the Union Bank of Colombo PLC) from 2011 to 2017.

Mr R P Halwala - Director

Mr Halwala was appointed to the Board of Property Development 
PLC on 01 February 2016.

He has a career in Commercial Banking spanning over 35 years. 
He has worked at Citibank Sri Lanka and Deutsche Bank, Colombo. 
Later he joined Seylan Bank PLC and worked in the areas of 
treasury operations, corporate and retail banking, branch banking 
and was instrumental in designing the bank’s branch network 
and automation process. He currently provides Independent 
Consultancy Services in management, finance, accounting and 
process improvements to small business ventures. He has also 
worked with numerous non-profit organisations for the betterment 
of the under-privileged sub-urban population around Kotte and 
Maharagama. 
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Mr S M De Zoysa - Director
(Resigned w.e.f. 21.09.2017)

Mr De Zoysa was appointed to the Board of Property Development 
PLC on 01 February 2016 and resigned on 21 September 2017.

Mr De Zoysa comes from a highly respected and established 
family of entrepreneurs who have been responsible for pioneering 
various industries in the country as well as being involved in many 
philanthropic activities. The De Zoysa’s family was the founders 
of the Associated Motorways Group of Companies where he 
worked for 22 years until March 2014 serving on the Board as an 
Executive Director. He left the company to concentrate and guide 
GAIA Investment (Pvt) Ltd, a consultancy and advisory business 
which has been successful in entering into partnerships with few 
international companies and represent them on key projects in 
Sri Lanka. Mr De Zoysa set up an NGO in 2005 soon after the 
Tsunami ravaged in Sri Lanka where Education Rehabilitation 
Monitoring was needed to rehabilitate the Education System 
that had been ravaged by the Tsunami. He currently serves on 
the Executive Committee of the Young Presidents’ Organisation, 
Colombo Chapter.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd…)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr G C Rajapaksha - Chief Executive Officer

Mr Rajapaksha joined the Company in January 1999 as the Head 
of Engineering and currently holds the position of Chief Executive 
Officer.

He graduated from the Indian Naval College of Engineering, Pune, 
India and holds an Executive Diploma in Business Administration 
from the University of Colombo, Masters Degree in Business 
Administration from the University of Honolulu, USA and various 
advanced Diplomas from overseas institutions in Management, 
Marine Engineering, Internal Combustion Engines, High Speed 
Craft Design & Building. He is experienced in the fields of 
designing, planning and implementation of variety of large scale 
projects such as Mini Hydro Power Plants, Fast Attack Craft and 
rehabilitation of military ships. He being the Chief Inspecting 
Engineer was responsible for the construction, management, 
quality control and acceptance trials of the Fast Attack Craft for 
the Sri Lanka Navy, built by the Ship-builders in Israel, France 
and China.

He is a Chartered Mechanical Engineer holding a Corporate 
Membership of Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka and the 
Institution of Engineers, India. He is also a Member of the Institute 
of Marine Engineering, Science & Technology, UK.

He was awarded with Uththama Seva Medal for over 20 years of 
unblemished career in the Sri Lanka Navy, serving the Motherland.

Ms M D Dissanayake - Manager Finance

Ms Dissanayake joined the Company in January 1999 as the 
Second in command of the Finance Department and currently 
holds the position of Head of Finance. In addition, she performs 
duties of the Secretary to the Board of Directors of the Company.

She graduated from the University of Sri Jayewardenepura, 
Sri Lanka, with a Bachelor of Science (Special) Degree in 
Accountancy & Financial Management and holds a Master 
of Business Administration from the Postgraduate Institute of 
Management, University of Sri Jayewardenepura, Sri Lanka. She 
is a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants (FCMA) (UK) and also a Member of the Chartered 
Global Management Accountants (CGMA).

Ms Dissanayake counts over 20 years of experience in the fields 
of Financial Reporting, Accounting & Financial Management, 
Budgeting & Strategic Planning, Inventory & Stores Management, 
Management of Information Systems etc.

Mr M W A C Wijesekara - Maintenance Manager

Mr Wijesekara joined Property Development PLC in May 2007 as 
the Maintenance Manager of the Company.

He holds a B.Sc. Engineering Degree specialized in Electrical 
Engineering (Power) from the University of Moratuwa and is a 
Corporate Member of the Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka since 
2003. He is a Certified Building Services Engineer for Low Voltage 
and Medium Voltage Installations by the Institution of Engineers, 
Sri Lanka and has followed a number of Certificate Courses 
(CPD) conducted by the Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka. He is 
an accredited Energy Manager appointed by Sustainable Energy 
Authority of Sri Lanka.

Mr Wijesekara counts over 22 years of experience in designing, 
installation supervision, testing, commissioning, maintenance 
and procuring of plant and machinery, services etc., for High-rise 
Buildings.

He has worked as Manager, Electrical and Building Management 
System (BMS) at Hatton National Bank (HNB) and also as 
Electrical Engineer at Central Engineering Consultancy Bureau 
(CECB).
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The Directors are pleased to submit their Report together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 
2017 to be presented at the 38th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company. The details set out herein provide the pertinent 
information required by the Companies Act No.07 of 2007, the 
Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules and are guided by 
recommended best accounting practices.

The Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is to own, maintain, manage, 
develop and sustain the utility and value of the Bank of Ceylon 
Headquarters Building.

Koladeniya Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd which is a fully owned Subsidiary 
of the Company commenced its commercial operations on 25 April 
2012 and the generated electricity from the Koladeniya Power 
Plant of 1200 kW capacity, is being delivered to the National Grid 
under the Agreement entered into between this Company and 
Ceylon Electricity Board for 20 years from the date of commercial 
operation.

Review of Business

A review of the financial and operational performance of the 
Company and its Subsidiary during the financial year and the 
future developments of the Company is given in the Chairman’s 
Review on Page 6. Chairman’s Review form an integral part of 
this report and provide a true and fair review of the Company’s 
performance for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Auditor’s Report

The Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements is given on 
Pages 24 to 25.

Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group have 
been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards comprising of SLFRSs and LKASs (SLFRSs) laid 
down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and 
comply with the requirements of Companies Act No.07 of 2007. 

The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group for 
the year ended 31 December 2017 duly signed by the Head 
of Finance, Chief Executive Officer and two Directors of the 
Company are given on Pages 26 to 61 which form an integral part 
of the Annual Report of the Board of Directors.

Turnover

The total income of the Group, was Rs. 1,028 million for the year 
under review as against Rs. 932 million during the previous year.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Profit and Appropriations

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

The Group Profit for the 
year ended 31 December 657,604,820 615,745,731

Less Taxation (173,339,567) (147,928,471)

The Group Net Profit after 
Taxation 484,265,253 467,817,260

Other Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss) (2,151,194) 845,152

  482,114,059 468,662,412

The Retained Earnings 
brought forward from 
previous year 1,115,889,239 1,835,226,827

Unclaimed Dividend over 
six years statutory Period 
(1995/1996 to 2010) 8,210,223 -

Balance available 
before Adjustments / 
Appropriations 1,606,213,521 2,303,889,239

Dividends
First & Final Dividend 
paid Rs. 3.00 per share 
for 2015 -

    
(198,000,000)          

First & Final Dividend 
paid Rs. 15.00 per share 
for 2016 - (990,000,000)

Balance carried forward 1,606,213,521 1,115,889,239

Significant Accounting Policies

The Significant Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation 
of the Financial Statements are given on Pages 30 to 41 of the 
Financial Statements.

Dividends

A First and Final Dividend of Rs. 15.00 per share for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2016, was paid during the current 
financial year on 19 January 2017, resulting in a total cash payout 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 amounting to Rs. 
990 million.

The Directors recommend for approval of the shareholders at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the payment of a First 
and Final Dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share for the year ended 31 
December 2017.

As required by Section 56(2) of the Companies Act No.07 of 
2007, the Board of Directors has confirmed that the Company 
satisfies the Solvency Test in accordance with Section 57 of the 
Companies Act.

Stated Capital

The Stated Capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017 was 
Rs. 660 million which is same as the previous financial year. The 
composition of the Stated Capital is given in Note 16.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd...)
Investment Property

Details of investment properties are given in Note 4 to the 
Financial Statements.

Fixed Assets and Investments

Details of Fixed Assets are given in Note 5 to the Financial 
Statements and details of Investments in Notes 8 and 9 to the 
Financial Statements.

Donations

The Company has not granted any donations during the financial 
year under review but its fully owned subsidiary Company, 
Koladeniya Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd has contributed Rs. 6.6 million 
to facilitate Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities during 
the financial year under review.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance practices and principles with respect to 
the management and operations of the Company are set out 
on Pages 14 to 18 of this report. The Directors confirm that the 
Company has complied with the relevant Rules on Corporate 
Governance detailed in the Listing Rules of Colombo Stock 
Exchange during the period 01.01.2017 to 31.12.2017.

Current Directors 

Mr K A K Jayatilake - Chairman

Mr W T L Weeratne - Deputy Chairman

Mr W P R P H Fonseka - Director

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera - Director

Mr R P Halwala - Director

Mr S M De Zoysa
(Resigned w.e.f. 21.09.2017)

- Director

Mr D N L Fernando
(Appointed w.e.f. 21.02.2018)

- Alternate Director to
Mr  W P R P H Fonseka

Directors’ Remuneration

Details of the remuneration and other benefits received by the 
Directors of the Company are set out in Note 25.2 to the Financial 
Statements.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

The Directors have complied with the provision of Section 192 of 
the Companies Act No.07 of 2007. None of the Directors were 
directly or indirectly interested in any of the tenders, contracts 
or proposed contracts entered into by the Company other than 
as disclosed in Note 25.2 to the Financial Statements. These 
interests have been declared at Directors’ Meetings.

The Company in keeping with the provisions of the Companies 
Act No.07 of 2007 maintains an Interests Register.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s shareholding

Shareholding No of 
Shares as at 
31.12.2017

No of 
Shares as at 
31.12.2016

Mr K A K Jayatilake 
Chairman - -

Mr W T L Weeratne
Deputy Chairman - -

Mr W P R P H Fonseka
Director - -

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera
Director - -

Mr R P Halwala
Director - -

Mr S M De Zoysa *
Director
(Resigned w.e.f. 21.09.2017)

- 1,500

Mr G C Rajapaksha    
Chief Executive Officer  - -

* Including shares held by close family members.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has complied with the requirements of the 
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange on Related Party 
Transactions and all related party transactions were made on 
terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. 
The details of Related Party Transaction entered into by the 
Company during the year is disclosed in Note 25 to the financial 
statements.

Major Shareholdings and Share Information

As at 31 December 2017, there were 3,388 registered 
shareholders (as at 31 December 2016 - 3,433). The shareholding 
of the Company and information relating to names and the 
number of shares held by 20 largest holders of (voting and non-
voting) shares and percentage of such shares held, public holding 
percentage, number of shares representing the Company’s 
Stated Capital, Earnings, Dividends, Net Assets per Share and 
Share Trading information have been disclosed at Pages 62 to 64.

Going Concern

The Directors are satisfied that, the Company has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future, to justify adopting the Going Concern basis in preparing 
these Financial Statements.
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Internal Controls

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Company’s 
systems of internal controls. The statements of Corporate 
Governance on Pages 14 to 18 set out in detail the Company’s 
system of internal controls.

Auditor’s Report

The Auditor General is the Auditor of the Company in terms of 
the provisions of Article 154 of the Constitution of the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka. Report of the Auditor General on 
the Financial Statements of the Company and the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary as at 31 
December 2017 is given on Pages 24 to 25 of this Annual Report.

Notice of Meeting

The notice of meeting relating to the 38th Annual General Meeting 
appears on Page 3 of the Annual Report.

Signed on behalf of the Board

  

Chairman   Director

S S P Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd 
Secretaries

04 April 2018
Colombo

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd…)
Annual Report

The Financial Statements of the Company, for the year ended 
31 December 2017 were authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on 23 February 2018. The appropriate number of copies 
of the Annual Report will be submitted to the relevant statutory 
bodies.

Statutory Payments

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, all taxes, 
dues and levies payable by the Company all contributions levies 
and taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees of 
the Company and all other known statutory dues as were due and 
payable by the Company as at the reporting date have been paid 
or, where relevant provided for.

Employees and Industrial Relations

There have been no material issues pertaining to employees and 
industrial relations of the Company during the financial year under 
review.

Risk Management

The Audit Committee covers the functions of the risk management 
activities and pay special attention for ensuring that the business 
and operational risks are identified, assessed and managed at 
acceptable levels and there has been no material information 
about the foreseeable risk factors to be disclosed. Details of 
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies are disclosed 
in Note 26 to the Financial Statement. 

Events After the Reporting Date

A decision has been made by the Board of Directors at its Meeting 
held on 09 February 2018, to De-List the Company from the Official 
List of the Colombo Stock Exchange, subject to shareholder and 
regulatory approvals.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST REGISTER
Disclosure of Interest by Directors

Pursuant Section 192 and 200 of the Companies Act No.07 of 
2007, the following Directors of Property Development PLC have 
declared their Directorships in the other related Companies during 
the period 01 January 2017 to 31 December 2017:

1. Mr K A K Jayatilake

Bank / Company Name 

Koladeniya Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd Chairman

2. Mr W T L Weeratne

Bank / Company Name 

The Lanka Hospitals Corporation PLC Director

3. Mr W P R P H Fonseka

Bank / Company Name

Transitional Lanka Records  Director
    Solutions (Pvt) Ltd 

Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka &  Director
    Finance PLC 

Lanka Securities (Pvt) Ltd Director

Ceybank Asset Management Ltd Director

LankaClear (Pvt) Ltd                                Alternate  
Director

4. Mr K K U Wijeyesekera

 Bank / Company Name

 
           -

 
5. Mr R P Halwala

 Bank / Company Name

 
           -

 
6. Mr S M De Zoysa  
 (Resigned w.e.f. 21.09.2017)

 Bank / Company Name

 
    -

 

S S P Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
Secretaries

04 April 2018
Colombo
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Overview

The corporate governance structure specifies the distribution 
of rights and responsibility among different participants in a 
Company, such as the Board of Directors, Management and 
its Shareholders. It also defines rules and procedures for 
making decisions on business affairs. At Property Development 
PLC (PDL), we believe that, good corporate governance is a 
fundamental element of our long-term success. PDL demonstrates 
responsible and ethical business practices by adhering to rules of 
governance and disclosure requirements for listed companies, as 
mandated by the Colombo Stock Exchange.

PDL’s Board of Directors is committed for responsible and effective 
corporate governance and oversees our business strategy. The 
Directors are experienced and diverse in their background and 
thinking. Mindful of the principles of good corporate governance 
and with full awareness of our accountability to the Company, your 
Directors with the advice and guidance of the Audit Committee, 
have put in place appropriate systems of control to ensure the 
integrity of Company’s accounting and financial reporting systems 
and to assiduously monitor the effectiveness of its governance 
practices.

The Audit Committee and Related Party Transaction Review 
Committee meets at least four times during a year and also the 
Board engages in healthy discussions and debates to ensure 
that, governance activities truly make sense for PDL in today’s 
business climate.

The Board has a majority of Independent Directors. Their 
combined strengths assist them as they oversee the Company’s 
current and future strategy, performance and plans for the future 
business activities, with the best interests of PDL shareholders 
in mind.

Composition of the Board of Directors, Responsibility and 
Attendance

The Company’s Board of Directors during the year under review 
comprised of five members. The Board met once in every quarter 
and also as and when a requirement arises. The names of the 
Directors and their attendance at meetings during the financial 
year under review are as follows:

Name of the  Director Category Held 
during 

the 
year

Attended 
during  

the 
Tenure

Mr K A K Jayatilake Chairman 4 4/4

Mr W T L  Weeratne Deputy 
Chairman

4 3/4

Mr W P R P H Fonseka Director 4 4/4

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera Director 4 3/4

Mr R P Halwala Director 4 4/4

Mr S M De Zoysa
(Resigned w.e.f. 21.09.2017)

Director 4 2/3

Role and Responsibility of the Board

The Board of Property Development PLC is responsible for 
the overall management of the Company and for ensuring that 
proper standards of corporate governance are maintained. The 
Board is also responsible for maintaining the integrity of financial 
information and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
management and risk control. Therefore, the Board functions 
include compliance with applicable laws and regulations, review 

of the management and operational information, adoption of 
Annual and Quarterly Accounts prior to publishing, review of 
exposure to key business risks, strategic direction of operational 
and management units, approval of annual budget and monitoring 
progress towards achieving those budgets.

The Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee and the Company’s Management 
headed by the Chief Executive Officer, support the Board to carry 
out its duties and responsibilities effectively and efficiently. In its 
governance of the Company’s affairs, the Board strives to balance 
the interests of the Company, its shareholders, employees and 
other stakeholders. The Board is finally responsible for the 
Company’s financial performance.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The classification of Directors during the financial year under 
review, into Executive, Non-Executive and Non-Executive 
Independent Directors are tabulated below and is as per Corporate 
Governance Rules:

Name of the Director Executive or 
Non-Executive

Independency

Mr K A K Jayatilake Non-Executive Independent

Mr W T L Weeratne Non-Executive Independent

Mr W P R P H Fonseka Non-Executive Non-Independent

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera Non-Executive Independent

Mr R P Halwala Non-Executive Independent
Mr S M De Zoysa
(Resigned w.e.f. 21.09.2017)

Non-Executive Independent

All the Directors are nominee Directors of the major shareholder 
i.e Bank of Ceylon.

Mr K A K Jayatilake was appointed as Chairman to the Board of 
Koladeniya Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd., who has a wealth of knowledge 
in natural resource management, agriculture, water resource 
planning and management, administration etc. Though he was a 
Director of the Subsidiary Company during the year under review, 
he has always displayed an unbiased and objective views on 
matters discussed at the Board. Therefore Mr K A K Jayatilake 
was considered Independent.

All Non-Executive Directors have submitted signed declarations 
in terms of the Colombo Stock Exchange Rules clarifying their 
position either as an Independent or Non-Independent Director.

Financial Guidance

The Board during the financial year under review included a 
member of a recognized professional accounting body with wealth 
of experience who possesses the necessary knowledge to offer 
the Board guidance on the matters of finance. He also served in 
the Audit Committee.

Corporate Governance Requirements under the Listing 
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange

Section 7 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange 
makes it mandatory for a listed Company to publish a table in its 
Annual Report relating to the financial year commencing 01 April 
2008 confirming that as at the date of Annual Report the Company 
is in compliance with the Corporate Governance Rules.

Property Development PLC, publishes its compliance as at the 
date of Annual Report or during the financial year under review as 
applicable in the table given below:
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Rule Present 
Status

Remarks

7.10.1 Non-Executive Directors

(a) The Board of Directors of a listed Company shall 
include at least two non-executive Directors; 
or such number of non-executive Directors  
equivalent to one-third of the total number of  
Directors, whichever is higher.

Complied All five Directors of the Board were non-executive 
Directors.

(b) The total number of Directors is to be calculated based 
on the number as at the conclusion of the immediately 
preceding Annual General Meeting.

Complied Details are at Directors' Report  
Pages 4 and 11.

(c) Any change occurring to this ratio shall be  
rectified within 90 days from the date of change.

Complied The number of non-executive Directors during the 
financial year under review meets with the Listing 
Rules

7.10.2 Independent Directors

(a) Where the constitution of the Board of Directors includes 
only two non-executive Directors in terms of Rule  7.10.1(a)  
above,  both  such  non-executive Directors shall be 
'Independent'. In all other instances two or one-third of non  
executive Directors appointed to the Board of Directors, 
whichever is higher shall be 'Independent'.

Complied Of the five Directors, four were independent at the 
end of the financial year under review.

(b) The Board shall require each non-executive  
Director to submit a signed and dated declaration 
annually of his/her independence or non-independence 
against the specified criteria.

Complied All Directors of the Board during the financial year 
under review have submitted a signed and dated 
declaration as per the format given in Appendix 7A 
of Section 7 of the Listing Rules.

7.10.3 Disclosure Relating to Directors

(a) The Board shall make a determination annually as to 
the independence or non-independence of each non- 
executive Director based on such declaration and other 
information available to the Board and shall set out in 
the Annual Report the names of Directors determined to 
be 'Independent'.

Complied Refer to Page 14, based on the declaration 
received from the Directors at year-end, the Board 
determined that the following Directors were 
independent during the financial year under review:

Mr K A K Jayatilake
Mr W T L Weeratne
Mr K K U Wijeyesekera
Mr R P Halwala
Mr S M De Zoysa
(Resigned w.e.f. 21.09.2017)

(b) In  the  event  a  Director  does  not  qualify  as 
‘Independent’ against any of the criteria (provided by 
the CSE in the Listing Rules) if the Board, taking into 
account all the circumstances, is of the opinion that    
the Director is nevertheless ‘Independent’, the Board 
shall specify the criteria not met and the basis for its 
determination in the Annual Report.

Complied Mr K A K Jayatilake, Non-Executive Director was, 
appointed to the Board of Directors of Koladeniya 
Hydropower (Pvt) Ltd., considering his knowledge 
in natural resource management, agriculture, 
water resource planning and  management and 
administration.  Though  he was a Director of 
the Subsidiary Company during the year under 
review he has always displayed an unbiased 
and  objective views  on matters discussed at the 
Board. Considering there facts Mr K A K Jayatilake 
was considered independent. All Non-Executive 
Directors have submitted signed declarations 
in terms of the Colombo Stock Exchange Rules 
clarifying their position either as an Independent or 
Non-Independent Director.

(c) In addition to disclosures relating to the independence 
of a Director set out above, the Board shall publish in 
its Annual Report a brief resume of each Director on its 
Board which includes information on the nature of his/
her expertise in relevant functional areas.

Complied Pages 7 to 8 include a brief resume of each Director 
of the Board during the financial year under review 
giving information required by this rule.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd…)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd…)

Rule Present 
Status

Remarks

(d) Upon appointment of a new Director to its Board, the 
Company shall forthwith provide to the Exchange a brief 
resume of such Director for dissemination to the public. 
Such resume shall include information on the matters 
itemized in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) above.

Complied Resumes in respect of new appointments to the 
Board have been submitted to the Colombo Stock 
Exchange as required under this rule.

7.10.5 Remuneration Committee

A listed company shall have a Remuneration Committee 
in conformity with the following :

(a) Composition: The Remuneration Committee shall 
comprise a minimum of two independent non-executive 
Directors (in instances where a company has only two 
Directors on its Board); or of non-executive Directors a 
majority of whom shall be independent, whichever shall 
be higher.

Complied The Remuneration Committee had two members 
during the financial year under review, both of them 
were Non-Executive, Independent Directors.

In a situation where both the parent company and the 
subsidiary are 'listed companies” the Remuneration 
Committee of the parent company may be permitted 
to function as the Remuneration Committee of the 
Subsidiary.

   Not 
   Applicable

However, if the parent company is not a listed company, 
then the Remuneration Committee of the parent 
company is not permitted to act as the Remuneration 
Committee of the subsidiary. The subsidiary should 
have a separate Remuneration Committee.

   Not 
   Applicable

One non-executive Director shall be appointed as 
Chairman of the Committee by the Board of Directors.

Complied Mr W T L Weeratne, Non Executive, Independent 
Director was appointed as a Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee on 25.01.2018, with the 
resignation of Mr S M De Zoysa.

(b) Functions:  The Remuneration Committee  shall 
recommend the remuneration payable to the 
Executive Directors and Chief Executive Officer of 
the listed company and/or equivalent position thereof, 
to the Board of the listed company, which will make 
the final determination upon consideration of such 
recommendations.

Complied Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and 
key Senior Managers was recommended by the 
Remuneration Committee.

(c) Disclosure in the Annual Report: The Annual Report 
should set out the names of Directors (or persons in 
the parent company's committee in the case of a group 
company) comprising the Remuneration Committee, 
contain a statement of the remuneration policy and set 
out the aggregate remuneration paid to executive and 
non-executive Directors.

Complied Requirements of this rule are covered in the 
Remuneration Committee Report at Page 20 
Aggregate remuneration to non-executive Directors 
is provided in Page 58.

7.10.6 Audit Committee

A listed company shall have an Audit Committee in 
conformity with the following:

(a) Composition: The Audit committee shall comprise a 
minimum of two independent non-executive Directors 
(in instances where a company has only two Directors 
on its Board); or of non-executive Directors, a majority of 
whom shall be independent, whichever shall be higher.

Complied Audit Committee consisted of two Non-Executive 
Independent Directors and one Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director during the financial year 
under review Page 19.

In a situation where both the parent company and the 
subsidiary are ‘listed companies’, the Audit Committee 
of the parent company may function as the Audit 
Committee of the subsidiary.

   Not 
   Applicable
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd…)
Rule Present 

Status
Remarks

However, if the parent company is not a listed company, 
then the Audit Committee of the parent company is 
not permitted to act as the Audit Committee of the 
subsidiary. The subsidiary should have a separate Audit 
Committee.

Complied Mr W  P  R  P  H  Fonseka  Non-Executive, Non-
Independent Director was appointed as Chairman 
on 12.02.2016.

One non-executive Director shall be appointed as 
Chairman of the Committee by the Board of Directors.

Unless otherwise determined by the Audit Committee, 
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer of the listed company shall attend Audit 
Committee meetings.

Complied Chief Executive Officer and the Head of Finance 
attended all the Audit Committee meetings by 
invitation.

The Chairman or one member of the committee should 
be a Member of a recognized professional accounting 
body.

Complied Mr W P R P H Fonseka, a Fellow Member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, 
serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

(b) Functions 
shall include

Overseeing of the preparation, presentation and 
adequacy of disclosures in the Financial Statements 
of a listed company, in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards.

Complied The Audit Committee reviews and ensures that 
the quarterly and annual Financial Statement 
are prepared in conformity with the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards.

Overseeing of the Company’s compliance with financial 
reporting requirements, information requirements of the 
Companies Act and other relevant financial reporting 
related regulations and requirements.

Complied The Company has strictly complied with the 
information requirements of the Companies Act and 
the other relevant requirements in the preparation 
of the Financial Statements.

Overseeing the processes to ensure that the Company’s 
internal controls and risk management are adequate, 
to meet the requirements of the Sri Lanka Auditing 
Standards.

Complied The Audit Committee monitors and reviews the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit 
functions and the internal control systems.

Assessment of the independence and performance of 
the company’s External Auditors.

   Not 
   Applicable

The Auditor General is the Auditor of the Company 
in terms of the provision of Article 154 of the  
Constitution  of  the  Democratic  Socialist Republic 
of Sri Lanka.

To make recommendations to the Board pertaining to 
appointment, re-appointment and removal of External 
Auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of 
engagement of the External Auditors.

   Not 
   Applicable

The Auditor General is  the  Auditor  of  the 
Company in terms of the provision of Article 154 
of the  Constitution  of  the  Democratic  Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka.

(c) Disclosure in the Annual Report

The names of the Directors (or persons in the parent 
company’s committee in the case of a Group Company) 
comprising the Audit Committee should be disclosed in 
the Annual Report.

Complied Names of the Directors comprising the Audit 
Committee disclosed in the Audit Committee 
Report at Page 19.

The committee shall make a determination of the 
independence of the Auditors and shall disclose the 
basis for such determination in the Annual Report.

   Not 
   Applicable

The  Auditor  General  is  the  Auditor  of  the 
Company in terms of the provision of Article 154 
of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka.

The Annual Report shall contain a report by the Audit 
Committee, setting out the manner of compliance by the 
Company in relation to the above, during the period to 
which the Annual Report relates.

Complied Refer Page 19.
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Board Committees

The Board has appointed following three sub committees during 
the financial year under review with specific delegated authorities; 
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee. Details of these committees and 
their members are given below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consisted of two Non-Executive Independent 
Directors and one Non- Executive, Non-Independent Director who 
is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka. The members of the  Committee are:
 
Mr W P R P H Fonseka - Chairman
Mr W T L Weeratne  - Member
Mr K K U Wijeyesekera - Member

The appointed members are required to exercise independent 
judgement in carrying out their functions. The Committee 
examines the matters relating to the Financial Reporting System of 
the Company and the external and internal audits of the Company. 
The responsibilities of the Committee include a detailed review of 
the financial statements, internal control procedures, accounting 
policies and compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
(SLFRSs/LKASs). The Committee also reviews the overall 
accuracy of the systems for compliance with legal, regulatory 
and ethical requirements. The Audit Committee also undertakes 
the functions of the risk management. The Committee assessed 
the major business and control risks and the control environment 
prevalent in the Company. The report of the Audit Committee is 
found on Page 19.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee during the financial year under 
review comprised of two Non-Executive Independent Directors.

The Chairman of the Committee was Mr S M De Zoysa and Mr R 
P Halwala served as a member. With the resignations of Mr S M 
De Zoysa on 21.09.2017, Mr W T L Weeratne was appointed to 
the Remuneration Committee on 25.01.2018. The committee is 
responsible for the formulation and establishment of remuneration 
policies including reviewing, approving and recommending to the 
Board, the remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and other key 
Senior Managers of the Company. The Remuneration Committee 
ensures that the levels of remuneration are adequate to attract, 
retain and motivate the Senior Management so that the highest 
quality of work may be expected. The Remuneration Committee 
Report can be found on Page 20.

Related Party Transactions Review Committee

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee comprised of 
two Non-Executive Independent Directors and one Non-Executive, 
Non-Independent Director. Mr K K U Wijeyesekera was appointed 
by the Board of Directors as Chairman of the Committee and Mr 
W P R P H Fonseka and Mr W T L Weeratne as Members on 
12.02.2016. As required under Section 9 of the Listing Rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) the Committee ensures that 
the interests of shareholders as a whole are taken into account 
by the Company when entering into Related Party Transactions 
and also to achieve highest standard of corporate governance, 
transparency, probity and ethical standards in all dealings of the 
Company within Related Parties. The Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee Report can be found on Page 21.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd…)
Compliance with Legal Requirements and Shareholders 
Relationship

The Board is of the view that compliance with legal requirements 
is a significant element of Corporate Governance for the 
management of Property Development PLC. The Board of 
Directors with the support of the Audit Committee assures that 
Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance 
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs/ LKASs) and 
also they are in compliance with the requirements of relevant 
regulatory bodies. The Board ensures the periodic and timely 
reporting to shareholders. All the material information about 
the Company is promptly communicated to the Colombo Stock 
Exchange to be released to the shareholders. The Annual General 
Meeting provides the shareholders, a forum to communicate their 
views, opinions and clarify their concerns.
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The Audit Committee which reviewed the operations and 
monitored the effectiveness of internal controls and procedures 
are of the view that, adequate controls and procedures are in place 
to provide reasonable assurance to the Board that the assets of 
the Company are safeguarded. The Committee appraises the 
Board on the status and adequacy of internal controls and the 
effectiveness thereof.

The internal audit function is outsourced to BDO Partners 
(formerly known as BDO Burah Hathy) as recommended by 
the Audit Committee. The observations of the internal auditors 
are tabled at the Audit Committee Meetings and the Committee 
invites representatives of BDO Partners to discuss observations 
and recommendations made in their reports. Follow up and 
implementation of previous internal audit recommendations 
are also discussed and reviewed by the Committee with BDO 
representatives.

W P R P H Fonseka
Chairman
Audit Committee

15 March 2018
Colombo

The Audit Committee appointed by and responsible to the Board of 
Directors comprised of two Non-Executive Independent Directors 
and one Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. Following 
members served in the Audit Committee during the period under 
review:

Mr W P R P H Fonseka - Chairman
Mr W T L Weeratne  - Member
Mr K K U Wijeyesekera - Member

The members of the Committee have the necessary financial 
knowledge and business acumen to carry out their roles effectively 
and to deliberate independently and professionally on matters that 
come within their purview. Mr W P R P H Fonseka, the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee is a Fellow Member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The Chief Executive Officer 
and the Manager Finance of the Company attend meetings of the 
Audit Committee by invitation.

The Audit Committee is empowered to examine any matter 
relating to the financial affairs of the Company and the Company’s 
internal and external audits. These include review of the quarterly 
and annual accounts, ensure the preparation, presentation and 
adequacy of disclosures in the Financial Statements in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs/LKASs), internal 
control procedures, accounting policies, compliance with 
requirements of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, requirements 
of the Colombo Stock Exchange and other regulatory bodies and 
such other related functionaries, as may be directed by the Board.

During the Financial Year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit 
Committee met on 05 occasions and the attendance at these 
meetings were as follows:

Name of the Director Category Held 
during the 

year

Attended 
during the 

Tenure

Mr W P R P H Fonseka Chairman 5 5/5

Mr W T L Weeratne Member 5 4/5

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera Member 5 5/5

The Committee reviews preparation, presentation and adequacy 
of disclosure in the Company’s quarterly and Annual Financial 
Statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
(SLFRSs/LKASs), and makes their recommendations to the 
Board for its deliberation and subsequent publication of these 
accounts. The Committee in its evaluation of the financial 
reporting system also recognizes the adequacy of the contents 
and quality of routine management information reports forwarded 
to its members.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
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The Committee met once during the year to review and evaluate 
the compensation packages to the Chief Executive Officer, Key 
Senior Managers and other Executives based on the said policy.

All the Directors of the Company are Non-Executive Directors and 
the remuneration of the Directors are paid as determined by the 
Board under the provisions of the Articles of Association of the 
Company.

The Committee also addresses issues concerning high inflation, 
payment of Cost of Living Allowance etc., impacting employee 
remuneration.

W T L Weeratne 
Chairman
Remuneration Committee

15 March 2018
Colombo

The Remuneration Committee consists of two Non-Executive 
Independent Directors. Mr S M De Zoysa was appointed as 
Chairman and Mr R P Halwala as a Member of the Remuneration 
Committee on 12.02.2016.

Mr S M De Zoysa resigned on 21.09.2017 and Mr W T L Weeratne 
was appointed as the Chairman of the Committee on 25.01.2018. 
The Chief Executive Officer assists the Committee by providing 
relevant information, such as salary data and other relevant 
analysis required for deliberations of the Committee.

The Remuneration Committee takes into account the performance 
of the Company and need for long term shareholder returns. 
The Remuneration Policy of the Company with regard to the 
compensation packages of the Chief Executive Officer, key 
Senior Managers and other Executives of the Company is linked 
to the level of their expertise, commitment, capacity to perform 
tasks required by the Company effectively, identifying future 
activities for the growth of the Company, contribution towards the 
Company’s profitability and returns to the stakeholders. The said 
policy is adopted to reward the performance of the key personnel, 
and aimed at encouraging and maintaining a continuous high 
standard of work. Once the Remuneration Policy of the Company 
as recommended by the Committee is approved by the Board, 
the Remuneration Committee grants increments to the key Senior 
Managers within this Policy.

During the Financial Year ended 31 December 2017 the 
Remuneration Committee met once and attendance at the 
Meeting was as follows:

Name of the Director Category Held 
during the

year

Attended 
during the  

Tenure

Mr S M De Zoysa Former 
Chairman

1 1/1

Mr R P Halwala Member 1 1/1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT
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Related Party Transactions during the year

The Committee has reviewed the Related Party Transactions 
during the financial year under review and the activities and 
observations of the Committee are communicated to the 
Board. Details of Related Party Transactions entered into by 
the Company during the year are disclosed on Note 25 to the 
Financial Statements.

Methodology

The Committee is guided by the Listing Rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange pertaining to the Related Party Transactions and 
the Board approved Related Party Transactions Policy.

Declaration

Declaration by the Board of Directors in the Annual Report as an 
affirmative statement of the compliance with the rules pertaining 
to the Related Party Transactions is included on Page 11 of the 
Annual Report.

K K U Wijeyesekera
Chairman
Related Party Transactions Review Committee

15 March 2018
Colombo

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee appointed by 
and responsible to the Board of Directors comprised of two Non-
Executive Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director as follows:

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera -  Chairman

Mr W T L Weeratne  -  Member

Mr W P R P H Fonseka -  Member

Terms of Reference of the Committee

The mandate of the Committee includes inter-alia the following:

• Developing and recommending for adoption by the 
Board of Directors of the Company a Related Party 
Transactions Policy consistent with that proposed by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.

• Updating the Board of Directors on the Related Party 
Transactions of the Company on a quarterly basis.

• Making immediate disclosure on applicable Related 
Party Transactions as required by Section 9 of the 
Continuing Listing Requirements of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.

• Making appropriate disclosure on Related Party 
Transactions in the Annual Report as required by the 
Colombo Stock Exchange.

Objective and Scope

Related Party Transactions Review Committee ensures that the 
interests of shareholders as a whole taken in to account by the 
Company when entering in to a Related Party Transactions and 
also  to  achieve  highest  standard  of corporate governance,  
transparency,  probity  and  ethical standards in all dealings of 
the Company within related parties. This policy applies to any 
transaction during any financial year, the Company is participating 
and the related person has or will have a direct or indirect material 
interest, unless the transaction is exempt under Section 9.5 of the 
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Committee Meetings

During the Financial Year ended 31 December 2017, the 
Committee met on 04 occasions and the attendance at these 
meetings was as follows:

Name of the Director Category Held 
during 

the year

Attended 
during the  

Tenure

Mr K K U Wijeyesekera Chairman 4 4/4

Mr W T L Weeratne Member 4 3/4

Mr W P R P H Fonseka Member 4 4/4

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS REVIEW COMMITTEE REPORT
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The Companies Act No.07 of 2007 sets out the responsibilities on 
the Board of Directors in relation to the preparation of Financial 
Statements for each year reflecting a true and fair view of the state 
of the Company and its Subsidiary as at the Financial Position 
date and the profit or loss for the financial year.

The Directors confirm that the Financial Statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2017, have been prepared under the 
generally accepted accounting principles and in accordance with 
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and all other applicable 
laws which have been applied consistently, and judgements and 
estimates have been made which are considered to be reasonable 
and prudent.

The Directors are required to make necessary assessment of the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and that the 
Company has adequate resources to continue in operations.

The Directors have provided the Auditors with every opportunity 
to carry out any reviews and tests that they consider appropriate 
and necessary to form their opinion on the Financial Statements.

The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps 
to safeguard the assets of the Company, its Subsidiary and to 
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. In this regard, 
the Directors have laid down effective and comprehensive internal 
control systems.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The Directors are of the opinion that, to the best of their 
knowledge, the Financial Statements of the Company published 
in this report have been prepared in accordance with the above 
requirements, all statutory levies payable by the Company or on 
behalf of the employees of the Company have been paid on or 
before the due date or provided for and that they have discharged 
their responsibilities as set out in this statement.

By Order of the Board

S S P Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd 
Secretaries

04 April 2018
Colombo
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Group Company
As at Note  31.12.2017  31.12.2016  31.12.2017  31.12.2016

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Investment Property 4  653,933,017  685,246,232  653,933,017  685,246,232 
Property, Plant and Equipment 5  261,910,485  274,454,230  48,129,262  46,049,612 
Premium Paid on Leasehold Land 6  26,231,216  26,652,601  26,231,216  26,652,601 
Intangible Assets 7  26,133,868  23,722,216  2,411,652  -   
Investment in Subsidiary 8  -    -    241,973,890  241,973,890 
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 9.1  1,529,357,490 1,594,597,294 1,529,357,490 1,594,597,294 
Other Assets 10.1  26,208,196  26,208,196  26,208,196  26,208,196 
Deferred Tax Assets 11.3  5,577,895  4,673,243  5,540,762  4,543,943 

 2,529,352,167 2,635,554,012 2,533,785,485 2,625,271,768 
Current Assets
Inventories 12  30,783,039  30,237,133  28,935,810  30,237,133 
Trade and Other Receivables 13  50,862,945  227,958,533  21,061,893  215,688,457 
Advances and Prepayments 14  8,050,470  7,275,583  7,762,650  6,873,913 
Other Current Financial Assets 9.2  1,713,921,317  1,997,658,341  1,470,382,668  1,776,081,857 
Cash and Bank Balances  9,746,756  7,179,015  11,590,527  5,542,784 

 1,813,364,527  2,270,308,605  1,539,733,548  2,034,424,144 
Total Assets  4,342,716,694  4,905,862,617  4,073,519,033  4,659,695,912 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves
Stated Capital 16  660,000,000  660,000,000  660,000,000  660,000,000 
Reserves 17  335,000,000  335,000,000  335,000,000  335,000,000 
Retained Earnings  1,606,213,521  1,115,889,239  1,373,402,709  897,259,509 
Other Components of Equity 17.3  1,109,108,000  1,173,095,000  1,109,108,000  1,173,095,000 
Total Equity  3,710,321,521  3,283,984,239  3,477,510,709  3,065,354,509 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Other Liabilities 10.2  349,188,522  349,188,522  349,188,522  349,188,522 

Defined Benefit Liabilities 18  20,159,770  16,378,079  19,788,436  16,228,367 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 11.3  130,850,655  131,243,779  109,308,055  108,216,479 

 500,198,947  496,810,380  478,285,013  473,633,368 

Current Liabilities 
Trade and Other Payables 19  32,384,612  46,561,319  28,950,810  43,868,453 
Dividends Payable 20  13,234,878  1,004,226,774  13,234,878  1,004,226,774 
Income Tax Payable   86,576,736  74,279,905  75,537,623  72,612,808 

 132,196,226  1,125,067,998  117,723,311  1,120,708,035 
Total Liabilities  632,395,173  1,621,878,378  596,008,324  1,594,341,403 
Total Equity and Liabilities  4,342,716,694  4,905,862,617  4,073,519,033  4,659,695,912 

We the undersigned, being the Chief  Executive Officer and the Head of Finance of Property Development PLC certify jointly that the above 
Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

                                  Manoji Dissanayake     G C Rajapaksha  
                                  Manager Finance     Chief Executive Officer   
         

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. Signed for and on behalf of the Board 
by,  

                                   K A K Jayatilake     W P R P H Fonseka  
                                   Chairman      Director    

The accounting policies and notes on pages 30 through 61 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.   
23 February 2018         
Colombo

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION      
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Group Company

For the year ended 31 December Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Revenue 3  799,205,523  694,949,550  710,777,596  619,182,545 

Other  Operating and Finance Income  229,032,396  237,020,070  242,678,384  220,214,888 
 1,028,237,919  931,969,620  953,455,980  839,397,433 

Direct Expenses 21.3  (150,143,024)  (120,077,054)   (141,275,689)  (111,279,409)

Staff Costs 21.4  (116,990,382)  (112,983,665)   (105,890,183)   (102,917,443)

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 21.3    (56,121,080)    (53,398,283)     (41,107,683)     (38,430,533)

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses 21.3   (47,378,613)   (29,764,887)   (38,247,970)   (25,926,144)
Profit before tax  657,604,820  615,745,731  626,934,455  560,843,904 

Income Tax Expense 11  (173,339,567)  (147,928,471)   (156,997,941)   (145,120,676)

Profit for the Year   484,265,253  467,817,260  469,936,514  415,723,228 

Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive Income to be reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax)

Net Gain/(Loss) on Available-For-Sale Financial Assets 17.3     (63,987,000)  100,240,232       (63,987,000)  100,240,232 

Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified  
to profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax) 

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit Plans 18  (2,946,753)  1,145,276  (2,782,690)  1,031,094 
Tax on Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit Plans 11  795,559  (300,124)  779,153  (288,706)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year,  
  net of tax 

 (66,138,194)  101,085,384  (65,990,537)  100,982,620 

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year, 
net of tax  418,127,059  568,902,644  403,945,977  516,705,848 

Profit Attributable to : 
Equity Holders of the Parent  484,265,253  467,817,260  469,936,514  415,723,228 

 484,265,253  467,817,260  469,936,514  415,723,228 

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) Attributable to :
Equity Holders of the Parent  418,127,059  568,902,644  403,945,977  516,705,848 

 418,127,059  568,902,644  403,945,977  516,705,848 

Earnings Per Share - Basic 22  7.34  7.09  7.12 6.30

The accounting policies and notes on pages 30 through 61 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

21.1 & 21.2
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Group Note Stated 
Capital

Rs.

Capital
Replacement

Reserve
Rs.

General
Reserves

Rs.

Available
for Sale
Reserve

Rs.

Retained 
Earnings

Rs.

Total

Rs.

Balance as at 01 January 2016 660,000,000  240,000,000  95,000,000 1,072,854,768  1,835,226,827  3,903,081,595

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)  -    -    -    100,240,232  845,152  101,085,384 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    467,817,260  467,817,260 

Dividends - First and Final for 2015 20.1  -    -    -    -   (198,000,000)  (198,000,000)

Dividends - First and Final for 2016 20.1  -    -    -    -   (990,000,000)  (990,000,000)

Balance as at 31 December 2016 660,000,000 240,000,000 95,000,000 1,173,095,000 1,115,889,239 3,283,984,239 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)  -    -    -     (63,987,000)  (2,151,194)  (66,138,194)

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    484,265,253  484,265,253 

Unclaimed Dividend Reversal -   
    Over Six Years Statutory Retention    
    Period (1995/1996 to 2010)

 -    -    -    -    8,210,223  8,210,223 

Balance as at 31 December 2017  660,000,000  240,000,000  95,000,000  1,109,108,000 1,606,213,521  3,710,321,521 

Company Note Stated 
Capital

Rs.

Capital
Replacement

Reserve
Rs.

General
Reserves

Rs.

Available
for sale
Reserve

Rs.

Retained 
Earnings

Rs.

Total

Rs.

Balance as at 01 January 2016 660,000,000  240,000,000  95,000,000  1,072,854,768 1,668,793,893  3,736,648,661 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)  -    -    -    100,240,232  742,388  100,982,620 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    415,723,228  415,723,228 

Dividends - First and Final for 2015 20.1  -    -    -    -    (198,000,000)  (198,000,000)

Dividends - First and Final for 2016 20.1  -    -    -    -    (990,000,000)  (990,000,000)

Balance as at 31 December 2016 660,000,000  240,000,000  95,000,000  1,173,095,000  897,259,509  3,065,354,509 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)  -    -    -    (63,987,000)  (2,003,537)  (65,990,537)

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    469,936,514  469,936,514 

Unclaimed Dividend Reversal - Over 
    Six Years Statutory Retention  
    Period (1995/1996 to 2010)

 -    -    -    -    8,210,223  8,210,223 

Balance as at 31 December 2017 660,000,000  240,000,000  95,000,000  1,109,108,000 1,373,402,709  3,477,510,709 

 The accounting policies and notes on pages 30 through 61 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY      
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Group Company

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Note  2017

 Rs. 
2016
 Rs. 

 2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Profit before Income tax Expense  657,604,820  615,745,731  626,934,455  560,843,904 

Adjustments for

Depreciation and Amortisation 21.3  56,121,080  53,398,283  41,107,683  38,430,533 

Income from Investments  (219,220,112)  (229,464,897)  (232,876,773)  (212,660,345)

Provision for Defined Benefit Plans 18.1  3,513,461  3,175,390  3,455,902  3,097,935 

Inventory write off/(add back) 21.3  3,753  1,292,329  2,826  1,292,329 

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 21.3  (28,439)  433,545  (17,790)  433,545 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  497,994,563  444,580,381  438,606,303  391,437,901 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories  (549,623)  (547,001)  1,298,533  (547,001)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables  156,811,378  (84,661,658)  173,948,549  (92,380,934)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Advances and Prepayments  (774,887)  (1,131,251)  (888,737)  (972,971)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables  (14,176,700)  19,488,569  (14,917,636)  19,411,791 

Cash Generated from Operations  639,304,731  377,729,040  598,047,012  316,948,786 

Defined Benefit Plan Costs paid 18  (2,678,523)  (2,579,695)  (2,678,523)  (2,579,695)

Income Tax Paid  (139,786,690)  (120,920,865)  (138,023,200)  (120,345,516)

Net Cash from/(Used in) Operating Activities  496,839,518  254,228,480  457,345,289  194,023,575 

Cash Flows from/(Used in) Investing Activities

Acquisition of Investment Property  (2,657,648)  (60,643,747)  (2,657,648)  (60,643,747)

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 5.7  (9,108,690)  (987,768)  (8,672,837)  (922,937)

Acquisition of Intangible Assets 7.1  (2,583,910)  -    (2,583,910)  -   

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  124,291  294,212  67,791  294,212 

Proceeds from Fixed Deposits over 3 months  704,700,000  1,784,000,000  540,700,000  1,654,000,000 

Proceeds from Repurchase Agreements over 3 months  -    399,400,000  -    329,600,000 

Investments in Repurchase Agreements over 3 months  -    (177,800,000)  -    (130,000,000)

Investments in Fixed Deposit over 3 months  (1,272,560,000)  (1,884,700,000)  (1,117,560,000)  (1,640,700,000)

Interest Received on Repurchase Agreements and  
      Treasury Bills 

 6,436,990  35,600,505  5,800,985  31,354,320 

Interest Received on Fixed Deposits  140,864,709  98,500,118  121,301,764  88,943,157 

Interest Received on Unsecured Subordinated           
      Redeemable Debentures of Bank of Ceylon

 23,336,164  18,298,579  23,336,164  18,298,579 

Dividends Received  19,196,915  38,392,898  58,256,915  38,392,898 

Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Investing Activities  (392,251,179)  250,354,797  (382,010,776)  328,616,482 

Cash Flows from/(Used in) Financing Activities

Dividends Paid  (987,121,704)  (179,856,564)  (982,781,704)  (179,856,564)

Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Financing Activities  (987,121,704)  (179,856,564)  (982,781,704)  (179,856,564)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (882,533,365)  324,726,713  (907,447,191)  342,783,493 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of          15
the year                                                                            

 1,287,991,453  963,264,740  1,230,640,319  887,856,826 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  15  405,458,088  1,287,991,453  323,193,128  1,230,640,319 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 30 through 61 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

 1.1 General 

  Property Development PLC (Company) is a Public Quoted Company incorporated on 15 October 1980 with limited liability 
and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office of the Company is located at Floor 19 of Bank of Ceylon Headquarters, BOC 
Square, No.1, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha, Colombo 1, and the principal place of business is situated at the same location.

  The Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprises of the Company and it’s Subsidiary 
of Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited.

 1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

  Parent Company

  During the year, the principal activity of the Company was to own, maintain and manage the Bank of Ceylon Headquarters 
Building, which the Company has rented out to the Bank of Ceylon.

 
  Subsidiary

  Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited

  The principal activity of the Company is to build, own and operate a mini hydro power plant of 1200 kW capacity and to deliver 
generated electricity to Ceylon Electricity Board National Grid.

 1.3 Parent Enterprise and Ultimate Parent Enterprise

  The Group’s parent undertaking is Bank of Ceylon. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group’s ultimate parent undertaking and 
controlling party is Bank of Ceylon, which is incorporated in Sri Lanka. 

             
 1.4 Date of Authorisation for Issue

  The Financial Statements of Property Development PLC for the year ended 31 December 2017 were authorised for issue by 
the Board of Directors on 23 February 2018.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

 2.1.1 Statement of Compliance  
   

  Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of 
Cash Flows, together with accounting policies and notes, (“Financial Statements”) i.e. Financial Statements of the Group 
and Separate Financial Statements of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and for the year then ended, are prepared in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards comprising of SLFRSs and LKASs (hereafter “SLFRS”).

  The Financial Statements presented in Sri Lankan Rupees have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for Available 
for Sale Assets, which has been measured at Fair value.

  The preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements is in compliance with the Companies Act. No.07 of 2007.

 2.1.2 Basis of Consolidation

  The Consolidated Financial Statements include the results, assets and liabilities of the Company, and it’s Subsidiary as at 31 
December. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from it’s involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through it’s power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an 
investee if, and only if, the Group has all of the following:

  • Power over the investee.

  • Exposure, or rights to variable returns from it’s involvement with the investee.

  • The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
 
  All inter company balances, transactions and profits are eliminated on consolidation. The Subsidiary is fully consolidated from 

the date on which control is transferred to the Parent and continued to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. 
The results of subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income from 
the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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2.1.3 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of the Group ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to 
liquidate or to cease trading. Furthermore, the board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt 
upon the group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

2.1.4 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet adopted.

The following new standards and amendments to standards that had been issued, but not yet effective, upto the issuance 
of the group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards when they become 
effective.

SLFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

SLFRS 15 is effective for periods beginning on 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. SLFRS 15 defines principles 
for recognizing revenue and will be applicable to all contracts with customers. However, interest and fee income integral 
to financial instruments and leases will continue to fall outside the scope of SLFRS 15 and will be regulated by the other 
applicable standards (e.g., SLFRS 9 and SLFRS 16 Leases).

Revenue under SLFRS 15 will need to be recognised as goods and services are transferred, to the extent that the transferor 
anticipates entitlement to goods and services. The standard will also specify a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements 
regarding the nature, extent and timing as well as any uncertainty of revenue and corresponding cash flows with customers. 

A preliminary evaluation of a sample of existing contracts of the Group has been performed in relation to the adoption of 
SLFRS 15. The Group’s current assessment and quantification as a result of the contract evaluation has not revealed a 
significant change to the revenue recognition pattern. 

SLFRS 16 - Leases

SLFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted provided the new 
revenue standard, SLFRS 15, is applied on the same date. Lessees must adopt SLFRS 16 using either a full retrospective or 
a modified retrospective approach.  

The Lessor accounting will continue however the standard requires lessees to recognise leases on their Financial Position 
as lease liabilities, with the corresponding right of-use assets. The Lessee is required to recognize in their Profit & Loss 
Depreciation expenses and Interest expenses streaming from the Right of use Asset and Lease liability respectively.

A preliminary evaluation of a sample of existing contracts of the Group has been performed in relation to the adoption of 
SLFRS 16. The Group’s current assessment and quantification as a result of contract evaluation has not revealed a significant 
Impact from adopting SLFRS 16. 

The Lessee has been provided with an exemption to disregard SLFRS 16 Lessee accounting if the Leases are Low value or 
short Term (less than 12 months). However, based on the Assessment the Group has reported that none of Leases meet this 
requirement.

SLFRS 9 - Financial instruments

SLFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. From a classification and measurement 
perspective, the new standard will require all financial assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed 
based on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow 
characteristics. 

The LKAS 39 measurement categories will be replaced by: fair Value through profit or loss (FVPL), fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI), and amortized cost. SLFRS 9 will also allow entities to continue to irrevocably designate 
instruments that qualify for amortized cost or fair value through OCI instruments as FVPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. Equity instruments that are not held for trading may be irrevocably 
designated as FVOCI, with no subsequent reclassification of gains or losses to the income statement. 

The accounting for financial liabilities will largely be the same as the requirements of LKAS 39, The accounting for financial 
liabilities of the entity will not have a significant impact from the adoption of SLFRS 9, except for the treatment of gains or 
losses arising from an entity’s own credit risk relating to liabilities designated at FVPL. Such movements will be presented in 
OCI with no subsequent reclassification to the income statement, unless an accounting mismatch in profit or loss would arise.

The Group has reviewed the impact of SLFRS 9 on the classification and measurement perspective. The Assessment carried 
out does not result in a significant change to the current accounting. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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 2.1.5 Comparative Information

  The prior year financial information has been re-arranged where necessary to conform to the current presentation.

 2.2 SIGNIFICANT  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

  In the process of applying the Group accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, apart from those 
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements. Further 
management is required to consider key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below. The respective carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are given in related 
notes to the Financial Statements.  The key items as such are discussed below.

  Impairment of Available for Sale Investments

  The Group treats all Available for Sale investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the 
fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or 
‘prolonged’ requires judgement. The management generally treats ‘significant’ as 20% or more and ‘prolonged’ as greater than 
six months.

  Taxes

  The Group (subsidiary Company, Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited is entitled to a tax exemption period as described 
in Note 11.6 to the Financial Statements) is subject to income taxes and other taxes including VAT. Significant judgement 
was required to determine the total provision for current, deferred and other taxes and the taxable profit for the purpose of 
imposition of taxes. Uncertainties exist, with respect to the interpretation of the applicability of tax laws, at the time of the 
preparation of these financial statements.

 
  The Group (subsidiary Company, Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited is entitled to a tax exemption period as described 

in Note 11.6 to the Financial Statements) recognised assets and liabilities for current, deferred and other taxes on estimates 
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were 
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income, deferred and tax amounts in the period in which the determination 
is made.  

  Useful Life of Depreciable Assets

  The group review the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment, Intangible 
Assets and Investment Property at each reporting date. Judgement of the management is exercised in the estimation of these 
values, rates, methods and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

  Commitments and Contingencies
 

  Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present 
obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the 
statement of financial position but are disclosed unless they are remote.

  Impairment of Goodwill   

  Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based 
on available data from binding sales transactions in arm’s length transactions of similar assets or observable market prices 
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. 
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next fourteen years and do not include restructuring activities that the 
Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being 
tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the 
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions used to determine the 
recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are further explained in Note 7.2.2 and 7.2.3 to the 
Financial Statements. 

  Deferred Tax Assets

  Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred 
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 
planning strategies.
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Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. Accordingly the asset which 
the group does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. 
The group exercised significant judgement in determining criteria that individually or in combination would lead to lease being 
classified as a finance lease or operating lease.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Defined Benefit Obligation and the related charge for the year are determined using assumptions required under actuarial 
valuation techniques. The valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, staff turnover 
rates etc. Due to the long term nature of such obligations these estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. Further details 
are given in Note 18.2 to the Financial Statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived 
from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model. 
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. 

The valuation of financial instruments is described in more detail in Note 9.3 and 9.4 to the financial statements.

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.3.1 Business Combinations and Goodwill 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interest in 
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred 
are expensed and included in administrative expenses. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and 
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition 
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest 
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent 
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in 
accordance with LKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration 
is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances where the 
contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of LKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate SLFRS/
LKAS.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash 
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the 
acquiree are assigned to those units. 

2.3.2 Foreign Currency Translation

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction.  
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange 
ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to profit or loss. Non monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non 
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was determined. 
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 2.3.3 Taxation

  Current Taxes

    Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

  The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure as reported in the Financial Statements and 
computed in accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax legislations. Refer to Note 11.5 and 11.6 for further information 
on relevant tax legislations applicable to the Company and Subsidiary.

  Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity through Other Comprehensive Income 
and not in the profit or loss.

  Deferred Taxation
 

  Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

  Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except where the deferred income tax 
liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

  Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and 
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised except where the deferred 
income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in 
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss; and

  The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each date of Financial Position and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to 
be utilised.

  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. 

  Deferred income tax relating to items recognised through other Comprehensive Income in equity is recognised in equity and 
not in the Profit or loss.

  Sales Tax 

  Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except: 

  When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, 
the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable and 
receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

  The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the reporting date. 

 2.3.4 Leases  

  The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

  Group as a Lessee 

  Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of  the leased item, are 
capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the 
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as 
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will 
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset 
and the lease term. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. 

Group as a lessor  

The hydro power plant in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the assets 
are classified as operating leases. Lease income from the hydro power plant is recognised in income based on energy output 
for the period which is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from leased asset is diminished. 
Cost including depreciation incurred in earning the lease income is recognised as an expense. The depreciation policy for 
depreciable leased assets is consistent with company’s normal depreciation policy for similar assets.

2.3.5 Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period 
of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets.  All other borrowing costs 
are expensed in the period in which they occur.  Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.3.6 Inventories

Inventories comprise consumables and spares. Consumables are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after 
making due allowances for obsolete and slow moving items and long held spares are at cost. Net realisable value is the price 
at which inventories can be sold in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated 
cost necessary to make the sale.

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and condition is accounted at actual cost on First-in First-Out 
basis (FIFO).

2.3.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Bank in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and on hand and investments 
with short maturity periods of three months or less (from the date of acquisition) net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

2.3.8 Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
All items of Property, Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost. 

The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment is the cost of acquisition or construction together with any expenses incurred in 
bringing the asset to its condition for its intended use.

Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) 
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective 
basis. The estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows;

Class of tangible assets                         Useful life

Plant and Machinery   Over 10 - 15 Years
Motor Vehicles    Over 04 - 15 Years  
Office Equipment, Furniture and Fittings  Over 10 Years   
Computer Equipment   Over 04 Years 
Power Plant    Over 20 Years      
Electro Mechanical Equipment  Over 20 Years   
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  De-recognition

  Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use. Gain or losses arising on de-recognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the differences 
between the sales proceed and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.

   
 2.3.9 Investment Property

  Properties held for capital appreciation and properties held to earn rental income have been classified as Investment Property.

  Basis of Recognition

  Investment property is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are associated with the Investment 
Property will flow to the Group and cost of the Investment Property can be reliably measured.

      
  Measurement

  Initial Measurement

  An Investment Property is measured initially at its cost.  The cost of a purchased Investment Property comprises of its 
purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure.  The cost of a self constructed investment is its cost at the date when 
the construction or development is complete.

  Subsequent Measurement

  The Group applies the Cost Model for Investment Properties in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 40 (LKAS 40), 
- “Investment Property”.  Accordingly, buildings classified as Investment Properties are stated at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

           
  Depreciation

  Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated life of the class of asset from the date of purchase up to 
the date of disposal.

  Class of tangible assets                           Useful life

  Buildings on Leasehold Land    Over 50 years 
  Plant and Machinery Integral to the Building   Over 10 - 40 Years 

 2.3.10 Leasehold Property
 

  The land, on which the Bank of Ceylon Headquarters Building stands, has been obtained from Urban Development Authority 
and the initial ground rent paid is amortised over 99 years, which is the period of the lease and shown in the Statement of 
Financial Position under premium paid on leasehold land. The lease rental amortised annually is charged to income as an 
expense item.

 2.3.11  Intangible Assets

  Computer Software

  Acquired computer application software and user licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring 
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful life of five years. Amortisation has been 
made on a straight line basis in the Comprehensive Income Statement. Costs associated with maintaining computer software 
programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. Further details are given in Note 7.1 to the Financial Statements.

  Goodwill

  Goodwill is initially measured at cost following initial recognition, goodwill carried at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses.

  Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the asset 
is de-recognised. Further details are given in Note 7.1 to the Financial Statements.
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2.3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, where 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate assets but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating 
to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

2.3.13 Retirement Benefit Obligations

Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity 

Gratuity is a post employment benefit plan. Provisions have been made for retirement gratuity from the first year of service 
for all employees in conformity with LKAS 19. However, under the payment of Gratuity Act No.12 of 1983, the liability to an 
employee arises only on completion of five years of continued service. The Group is liable to pay gratuity in terms of relevant 
statute. In order to meet this liability, a provision is carried forward in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Based on the LKAS 19 (Revised) – on Employee Benefit, the Group annually measures the present value of the promised 
retirement benefits for gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, with the advice of an independent actuary using Projected Unit 
Credit Method.  

The Defined Benefit Obligation and the related charge for the year are determined using assumptions required under actuarial 
valuation techniques. The valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, staff turnover 
rates etc.  Due to the long term nature of such obligations these estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. Further details 
are given in Note 18 to the Financial Statements.

 
The gratuity liability is not externally funded.

This item is grouped under Defined Benefit Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Recognition of Actuarial Gains and Losses

Actuarial gains/losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income. Such actuarial 
gains and losses are also immediately recognised in retained earnings and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods. 

Defined Contribution Plans – Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund

Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions in line with 
respective Statutes and Regulations. The Company contributes 15% and 3% and subsidiary contributes 12% and 3% of gross 
emoluments (comprising the salary and any other allowances subject to EPF Contributions) of employees to Employees’ 
Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.

2.3.14 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or Groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value 
indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in those expense 
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for property previously revalued where the revaluation 
was taken to equity. In this case the impairment is also recognised in equity up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to; determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, 
in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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2.3.15 Financial Instruments

2.3.15.1 Financial Assets

  Initial Recognition and Measurement

  Financial assets within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans 
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial 
recognition.

  All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of assets not at fair value through profit or loss, 
directly attributable transaction costs. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date 
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. The Group financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade 
and other receivables, loans and other receivables and quoted financial instruments.

  The Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 

  The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows,

  Loans and Receivables (L&R)

  L&R are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After 
initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method (EIR), less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

 
  Available-For-Sale Financial Investments (AFS)

  After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses 
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the 
cumulative loss is reclassified to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and removed from the available-for-sale reserve. 
Interest income on AFS financial assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method and is recognised in profit or loss.

  For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been 
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference 
between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the 
EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income.

 
  Derecognition

  A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised 
when;

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

• The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either 

• the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 

       Or

• The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

  When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, 
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of it, the 
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in it.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is 
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an 
incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group 
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group 
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability 
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Available-For-Sale Financial Investments 

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence 
that an investment or a Group of investments is impaired. 

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged 
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and 
‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the 
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss 
on that investment previously recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is removed from other comprehensive 
income and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed 
through the Statement of Comprehensive Income; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income. 

Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists 
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial 
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and 
collectively assesses them for impairment.  Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment 
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the assets’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit 
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial 
asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss 
is the current EIR. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is 
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The 
interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Loans together with the 
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised 
or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or 
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss 
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to 
finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.3.15.2 Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, carried at amortised cost. 
This includes directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and rent and fuel deposits payable to Bank of Ceylon.

Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities classified as ‘fair value through profit or loss’ will be subsequently measured at fair value and financial 
liabilities classified as ‘other liabilities’ will be subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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  Derecognition
           

  A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

2.3.15.3 Fair Value Measurement

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

  • In the principal market for the asset or liability 
 
 Or 

  • In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

  The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in 
its highest and best use. 

  The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 

  •  Level 1    -  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2  - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

• Level 3  - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable for the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has 
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and 
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.4 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2.4.1 Revenue Recognition

  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can 
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the net of trade discounts and sales taxes. The following specific recognition 
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised. 

  Rental Income

  Rental income arising from Investment Properties is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term.

  Income from Hire of Power Plants
                

  Lease income from the power plant is recognized in income based on energy output for the period which is more representative 
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from leased asset is diminished.

      
       Interest Income

  Interest Income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) unless there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

  Dividend Income
 

  Dividend Income is recognised on an accrual basis when right to receive is established.
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Other Income

Other Income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Net gains and losses of a revenue nature on the disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and other non-current assets 
including investments have been accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, having deducted from proceeds 
on disposal, the carrying amount of the assets and related selling expenses. 

Gains and losses arising from incidental activities to main revenue generating activities and those arising from a group of 
similar transactions which are not material, are aggregated, reported and presented on a net basis.

2.4.2 Expenditure Recognition

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the basis of a direct association between the cost 
incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in maintaining 
the Property, Plant and Equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged to income in arriving at the profit for the year.

For the purpose of presentation of Statement of Comprehensive Income the Directors are of the opinion that nature of 
expenses method present fairly the elements of the Group performance and hence such presentation method is adopted.

2.5 SEGMENT REPORTING

An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the group’s other components, whose 
operating results are reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about resource allocated to each segment and 
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The group’s activities have been segregate into two different segments (maintaining and managing of building and power 
generation) based on the business activities that each unit is engaged in for purpose of reviewing the operating results of the 
group. Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about 
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profits or losses.

Inter segment transactions are accounted for at fair market prices, on arm’s length basis. Such transfers are eliminated on 
consolidation. Details of segment reporting are given in Note 27 to the financial statements.

3. REVENUE Group Company

 2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

 2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Rental Income  710,777,596  619,182,545  710,777,596  619,182,545 

Revenue from Hire of Power Plant -        
      Ceylon Electricity Board

 
88,427,927 

 
75,767,005  -    -   

 799,205,523  694,949,550  710,777,596  619,182,545 

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group / Company Balance as at 
01.01.2017

Rs.

Additions
 

Rs.

Disposals /  
Transfers 

Rs.

Balance as at 
31.12.2017

Rs. 

4.1 Gross Carrying Amounts     

At Cost

Investment Property  1,356,408,182  879,288  (317,115)  1,356,970,355 

4.2 In the Course of Construction

Capital Work-in-progress  -    1,778,360  -    1,778,360 

Total Gross Carrying Amount  1,356,408,182  2,657,648  (317,115)  1,358,748,715 
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4.  INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Contd…)

Balance as at 
01.01.2017 

Rs.  

Charge for the 
year
 Rs. 

Disposals /  
Transfers

 Rs. 

Balance as at 
31.12.2017

 Rs. 4.3 Depreciation

Investment Property  671,161,950  33,970,862  (317,114)  704,815,698 

4.4 Net Book Values 2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

Investment Property  652,154,657  685,246,232 

In the Course of Construction

Capital Work-in-progress  1,778,360  -   

Total Carrying Amount of Investment Property  653,933,017  685,246,232 

4.5    Fair Value of Investment Property

 The fair value has been determined based on valuations performed by  P B Kalugalagedara & Associates, Chartered Valuation 
Surveyor & Estate Agents, an accredited independent valuer, as at 31 December 2017. Chartered Surveyors & Estate Agents 
Company is an industry specialist in valuing these types of Investment Properties.

Fair Value as at 31 December 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Building including Plant and Machinery Integral to  Building 
 6,775,000,000  7,126,000,000

BOC Square, No.1, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha, Colombo 01

 The Group uses unobservable market inputs in determining the fair value of the Investment Property (i.e. Falling under Level 3 
of the fair value hierarchy) 

4.6 The significant assumptions used by the valuer are as follows :

Valuation Techniques Significant Unobservable Inputs
Bank of Ceylon Headquarters Building Income Approach using discounted cash 

flows
 - Estimated rental value per sq.ft.

 - Growth in future rentals

 - Anticipated maintenance cost

 - Discount Rate

4.7 Rental Income earned from Investment Property by the Group amounted Rs.710.78 Mn. (2016 - Rs.619.18 Mn.). Direct 
operating expenses incurred by the Group amounted to Rs.141.3 Mn. (2016 - Rs.111.3 Mn.).

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

5.1 Gross Carrying Amounts 

Balance as at 
01.01.2017

Rs.

Additions

Rs.

Disposals / 
Transfers

Rs.

Balance as at 
31.12.2017

Rs.

At Cost 
Plant and Machinery  4,585,899  262,634  -    4,848,533 

Power Plant  182,892,276  -    -    182,892,276 

Other Electro-Mechanical Equipment  113,218,432  -    -    113,218,432 

Motor Vehicles  34,556,586  501,200  (294,315)  34,763,471 

Office Equipment, Furniture and  Fittings  95,659,838  474,266  (14,943,822)  81,190,282 

Computer Equipment  6,088,131  7,895,590  -    13,983,721 

Gross Carrying Amount at cost  437,001,162  9,133,690  (15,238,137)  430,896,715 
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd...)

5.2 Depreciation   

Balance as at 
01.01.2017

Rs.

Charge for 
the year 

Rs.

Disposals / 
Transfers

Rs.

Balance as at 
31.12.2017

Rs.

Plant and Machinery  1,754,920  360,581  -    2,115,501 

Power Plant  42,367,974  9,144,611  -    51,512,585 

Other Electro-Mechanical Equipment  26,351,863  5,660,916  -    32,012,779 

Motor Vehicles  8,199,059  3,301,196  (244,314)  11,255,941 

Office Equipment, Furniture and  Fittings  78,212,968  2,246,858  (14,872,963)  65,586,863 

Computer Equipment  5,660,148  842,413  -    6,502,561 

Total Depreciation on assets at cost  162,546,932  21,556,575  (15,117,277)  168,986,230 

5.3 Net Book Values 
2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

Plant and Machinery  2,733,032  2,830,979 

Power Plant  131,379,691  140,524,302 

Other Electro-Mechanical Equipment  81,205,653  86,866,569 

Motor Vehicles  23,507,530  26,357,527 

Office Equipment, Furniture and  Fittings  15,603,419  17,446,870 

Computer Equipment  7,481,160  427,983 

Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment  261,910,485 274,454,230

Company

5.4 Gross Carrying Amounts 

Balance as at 
01.01.2017

Rs.

Additions

Rs.

Disposals / 
Transfers

Rs.

Balance as at 
31.12.2017

Rs.

At Cost 
Plant and Machinery  3,484,955  262,634  -    3,747,589 

Motor Vehicles  34,378,646  239,500  (116,375)  34,501,771 

Office Equipment, Furniture and Fittings  95,105,624  275,113  (14,815,022)  80,565,715 

Computer Equipment  6,027,881  7,895,590  -    13,923,471 

Gross Carrying Amount at cost  138,997,106  8,672,837  (14,931,397)  132,738,546 

5.5 Depreciation   

Balance as at 
01.01.2017

Rs.

Charge for 
the year 

Rs.

Disposals / 
Transfers

Rs.

Balance as at 
31.12.2017

Rs.

Plant and Machinery  1,375,637  250,486  -    1,626,123 

Motor Vehicles  8,021,120  3,263,032  (66,375)  11,217,777 

Office Equipment, Furniture and Fittings  77,950,837  2,187,247  (14,815,013)  65,323,071 

Computer Equipment  5,599,900  842,413  -    6,442,313 

Total Depreciation on assets at cost  92,947,494  6,543,178  (14,881,388)  84,609,284 

5.6 Net Book Values
2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

Plant and Machinery  2,121,466  2,109,318 

Motor Vehicles  23,283,994  26,357,526 

Office Equipment, Furniture and Fittings  15,242,644  17,154,787 

Computer Equipment  7,481,158  427,981 

Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment  48,129,262  46,049,612 
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd...)

5.7 During the financial year, the Group has acquired Property, Plant and Equipment to the aggregate value of  
Rs. 9,133,690 ( 2016 - Rs. 987,768). Cash payments amounting to Rs. 9,108,690 ( 2016 - Rs. 987,768) was paid during the 
year for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment.

5.8 During the financial year, the Company has acquired Property, Plant and Equipment to the aggregate value of Rs. 8,672,837 
(2016 - Rs 922,937). Cash payments amounting to Rs. 8,672,837 ( 2016 - Rs. 922,937) was paid during the year for purchase 
of Property, Plant and Equipment.

5.9 Property, Plant and Equipment of the Group/Company includes fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of Rs. 
64,438,611 (2016 - Rs. 79,141,036).

6. PREMIUM PAID ON LEASEHOLD LAND

Group Company

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

Balance as at the beginning of the year  26,652,601  27,073,986  26,652,601  27,073,986 

Amortisation during the year  (421,385)  (421,385)  (421,385)  (421,385)

Balance as at the end of the year  26,231,216  26,652,601  26,231,216  26,652,601 

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

7.1 Group Goodwill  

 Rs. 

Computer  
Software

 Rs. 

Total

 Rs. 

Cost

As at 1 January 2017  23,722,216  -    23,722,216 

Acquired/Incurred during the Year  -    2,583,910  2,583,910 

As at 31 December 2017  23,722,216  2,583,910  26,306,126 

Amortisation

As at 1 January 2017  -    -    -   

Amortisation  -    172,258  172,258 

As at 31 December 2017  -    172,258  172,258 

Net Book Value

As at 1 January 2017  23,722,216  -    23,722,216 

As at 31 December 2017  23,722,216  2,411,652  26,133,868 

7.2 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess amount paid over the company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable Assets, Liabilities 
and Contingent Liabilities at the date of acquisition i.e. (on 03 December 2010) of subsidiary i.e Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) 
Limited (KHP) and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

7.2.1 Impairment Testing of Goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations with indefinite life period has been allocated to one Cash Generating Unit 
(CGU), that is Koladeniya Hydro Power Plant. The Group performed its annual impairment test as at 31 December 2017. 
The recoverable amount of the KHP CGU unit has been determined based on a value in use calculated using cash flow 
projections from financial budgets approved by the Board covering a 14 years period since the Standardised Power Purchase 
Agreement between Ceylon Electricity Board and Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited shall continue for a further period 
of 14 years. As a result of this analysis, management has not recognised any impairment charge as carrying value is less than 
the recoverable value.       

7.2.2 Key Assumptions used in Value in use calculations

- The stream flows will prevail as estimated by the senior hydrologist in his comprehensive study report of hydrology.
- The effectiveness of the machinery would be as indicated by the manufacturer.
- Price Inflation 5%
- Discount Rate 12%
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd...)
7.2.3 Sensitivity to changes in Assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the KHP CGU, management believes that no reasonably possible change (i.e. 
in the range of 0.5% - 1% ) in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed 
its recoverable amount.   

7.3 Company Computer  
Software

 Rs. 

Total

Rs.

Cost

As at 1 January 2017  -    -   

Acquired/Incurred during the Year  2,583,910  2,583,910 

As at 31 December 2017  2,583,910  2,583,910 

Amortisation

As at 1 January 2017  -    -   

Amortisation  172,258  172,258 

As at 31 December 2017  172,258  172,258 

Net Book Value

As at 1 January 2017  -    -   

As at 31 December 2017  2,411,652  2,411,652 

8. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY
Company 

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.8.1 Non Current Assets

8.1.1 Investments In Subsidiary

Non Quoted

Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited (KHP)  241,973,890  241,973,890 

 241,973,890  241,973,890 

The Company has a 100% (2016 - 100%) interest in Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited which is a non quoted Company 
and involves in the business of Hydro Power Generation activities.

Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited commenced its commercial operations on 25 April 2012 and issued and fully paid 
number of ordinary shares of KHP as at 31 December 2017 stands at 21,700,000. 

9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Group Company

9.1 Other Non-Current Financial Assets
2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Available-For-Sale Investments

Quoted equity shares  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000 

(Ordinary Shares 21,329,000 nos) 

Loans and Receivables

Loans to Employees  1,187,271  1,964,130  1,187,271  1,964,130 

Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable five year  
     Debentures of Bank of Ceylon  205,772,219  206,248,164  205,772,219  206,248,164 

Total Other Non-Current Financial Assets  1,529,357,490  1,594,597,294  1,529,357,490  1,594,597,294 
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9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd...)
Group Company

9.2 Other Current Financial Assets
2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

Loans and Receivables

Loans to Employees  2,014,607  2,555,223  2,014,607  2,555,223 

Investments in Fixed Deposits  1,667,969,676  1,901,930,147  1,430,533,817  1,694,475,174 

Investment in  Repurchase Agreements  43,937,034  93,172,971  37,834,244  79,051,460 

Total Other Current Financial Assets  1,713,921,317  1,997,658,341  1,470,382,668  1,776,081,857 

Total Other Non-Current and Current Financial 
Assets

 
3,243,278,807 

 
3,592,255,635 

 
2,999,740,158 

 
3,370,679,151 

Total Available-For-Sale Investments  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000 

Total Loans and Receivables  1,920,880,807  2,205,870,635  1,677,342,158  1,984,294,151 

 3,243,278,807  3,592,255,635  2,999,740,158  3,370,679,151 

Loans and receivables generate a fixed  interest income for the Group. The carrying value might be affected by changes in the 
credit risk of the counterparties.          

Loans to Employees 

Loans to employees are granted at 5% p.a. which is below market rate  and  the amortised cost  is determined using Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPLR) issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Available-For-Sale Investments 

Available-For-Sale investment in quoted equity shares is the investment made  in Lanka Hospitals Corporation PLC which is 
a quoted company and involves in the business of hospital activities. The Group has a 9.53% (2016 - 9.53%) interest. The fair 
value of the quoted equity shares is determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market.

Impairment on Available-For-Sale Financial Investments 

For Available-For-Sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence 
that an investment or a Group of investments is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as Available-For-Sale, 
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. The 
determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among 
other factors, historical share price movements and the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than 
its cost.

9.3 Fair Values 

9.3.1 Group

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are 
carried in the financial statements.         

Carrying amount Fair value

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Financial Assets

Trade and Other Receivables  50,219,349  227,212,735  50,219,349  227,212,735 

Available-For-Sale Financial Investments  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000 

Loans and Receivables  1,920,880,807  2,205,870,635  1,920,880,807  2,205,870,635 

Cash and Short-Term Deposits  9,746,756  7,179,015  9,746,756  7,179,015 

Total  3,303,244,912  3,826,647,385  3,303,244,912  3,826,647,385 

Financial Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables (excluding statutory    
  payables)

 
28,076,000 

 
26,576,990 

 
28,076,000 

 
26,576,990 

Total  28,076,000  26,576,990  28,076,000  26,576,990 
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9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd…)
9.3.2 Company

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that are 
carried in the financial statements.         

Carrying amount Fair value

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Financial Assets

Trade and Other Receivables  20,518,297  215,042,658  20,518,297  215,042,658 

Available-For-Sale Financial Investments  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000 

Loans and Receivables  1,677,342,158  1,984,294,151  1,677,342,158  1,984,294,151 

Cash and Short-Term Deposits  11,590,527  5,542,784  11,590,527  5,542,784 

Total  3,031,848,982  3,591,264,593  3,031,848,982  3,591,264,593 

Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables (excluding statutory   
   payables)  24,801,283  24,227,946  24,801,283  24,227,946 

Total  24,801,283  24,227,946  24,801,283  24,227,946 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions 
were used to estimate the fair value.         

Cash and short-term deposits, Trade and Other Receivables and Trade and Other Payables approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value of Available-For-Sale financial assets is derived from quoted market prices in the active market.

9.3.3 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired can be assessed 
by  historical information about counterparty default rates of trade and related party receivables or external credit rating with 
reference to financial institutions: 

Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Counterparties without external credit rating:

Group 1  29,956,416  12,434,695  255,364  264,618 

Group 2  -    -    -    -   

Group 3  -    -    -    -   

Total unimpaired trade and related party receivables

Group 1 – customers/related parties (less than 6 months).

Group 2 – customers/related parties (more than 6 months) with no defaults in the past.

Group 3 – customers/related parties (more than 6 months) with some defaults in the past. All defaults were fully recovered.
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9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd…)
Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Available-For-Sale Financial Investments 

  Quoted equity shares  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000 

Loans and Receivables  

   'AA+(lka)' Outlook Stable  1,917,678,929  2,201,351,282  1,674,140,280  1,979,774,798 

   Loans to Employees  3,201,878  4,519,353  3,201,878  4,519,353 

Trade and Other Receivables

   'AA+(lka)' Outlook Stable  20,177,022  214,748,040  20,177,022  214,748,040 

   'AAA(lka)'/Stable  85,911  30,000  85,911  30,000 

Cash and Short -Term Deposits 

   'AA+(lka)' Outlook Stable  9,334,756  6,849,015  11,263,527  5,212,784 

   Cash in hand  412,000  330,000  327,000  330,000 

9.4 Fair Value Hierarchy 

The Group/Company uses the following hierarchy for  disclosing the fair value of financial instruments  by valuation technique.

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : Other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either                            
 directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : Techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable                 
 market data.

Assets Measured at Fair Value

As at 31 December Group/Company held the following financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of financial 
position.

Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Level 1

Available for sale Financial Assets :

 - Investment in Quoted Equity Securities  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000  1,322,398,000  1,386,385,000 

Level 2  -    -    -    -   

Level 3  -    -    -    -   

10. OTHER ASSETS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

10.1 OTHER ASSETS 
Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Art work at Cost  5,208,196  5,208,196  5,208,196  5,208,196 

Deposits made in Ceylon Electricity Board  21,000,000  21,000,000  21,000,000  21,000,000 

 26,208,196  26,208,196  26,208,196  26,208,196 
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10. OTHER ASSETS AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Contd…)

10.2 OTHER LIABILITIES

Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Deposits Received from Bank of Ceylon :

 - Rental Deposit   348,281,022  348,281,022  348,281,022  348,281,022 

 - Fuel Deposit  907,500  907,500  907,500  907,500 

 349,188,522  349,188,522  349,188,522  349,188,522 

11. INCOME TAX 
The major components of Income tax expense 
for the years ended 31 December are as follows :   

Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Current Income Tax

Current Income Tax Charge  169,501,784  147,247,388  156,124,031  143,944,175 

10% Withholding Tax on Inter Company Dividends  4,340,000  -    -    -   

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred Taxation Charge (Note 11.2 (a))  (502,217)  681,083  873,910  1,176,501 

Income Tax Expense Reported in the 
Comprehensive Income Statement

 
173,339,567 

 
147,928,471 

 
156,997,941 

 
145,120,676 

Other Comprehensive Income

Tax on Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit 
      Plans (Note 11.2 (b))

 
795,559 

 
(300,124)  779,153  (288,706)

11.1 Reconciliation between Current Tax Expense and the product of Accounting Profit multiplied by the statutory tax rate 
is as follows:

Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Accounting Profit/(Loss) before tax from  
    continuing operations   

 
657,604,820 

 
615,745,731 

 
626,934,455 

 
560,843,904 

Accounting Profit before Income tax  657,604,820  615,745,731  626,934,455  560,843,904 

At the Statutory Income Tax rate of 28% (2016 - 28%)  184,129,350  172,408,805  175,541,647  157,036,293 

Tax Effect of Disallowable Expenses  12,496,785  11,933,867  12,496,785  11,933,867 

Tax Effect of Allowable Expenses  (31,914,401)  (25,025,985)  (31,914,401)  (25,025,985)

Tax Effect of Deferred Tax  (502,217)  681,083  873,910  1,176,501 

Tax Effect of Exempt (Profit)/Loss  -    (12,069,299)  -    -   

Tax Effect of rate Differentials  4,790,050  -    -    -   

10% Withholding Tax on Inter Company Dividends  4,340,000  -    -    -   

 173,339,567  147,928,471  156,997,941  145,120,676 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017



PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PLC  
Annual Report 2017

50

11. INCOME TAX (Contd…)

11.2 Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax  relates to the followings :

Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

(a) Statement of Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax Liability

Accelerated Depreciation for Tax Purpose  (393,124)  (161,092)  1,091,576  1,321,608 

 (393,124)  (161,092)  1,091,576  1,321,608 

Deferred Tax Assets

Defined Benefit Plans  (223,393)  (152,525)  (217,666)  (145,107)

Tax Loss  114,300  994,700  -    -   

 (109,093)  842,175  (217,666)  (145,107)

Deferred Income Tax Charge  (502,217)  681,083  873,910  1,176,501 

(b) Other Comprehensive Income

Tax on Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit
     Plans  795,559  (300,124)  779,153  (288,706)

11.3 Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax  relates to the followings :

Statement of Financial Position
Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Deferred Tax Liability

Accelerated Depreciation for Tax Purpose  130,850,655  131,243,779  109,308,055  108,216,479 

 130,850,655  131,243,779  109,308,055  108,216,479 

Deferred Tax Assets

Defined Benefit Plans  5,577,895  4,558,943  5,540,762  4,543,943 

Tax Loss  -    114,300  -    -   

 5,577,895  4,673,243  5,540,762  4,543,943 

11.4 Deferred Tax has been computed using current tax rate of 28% for Property Development PLC and 10% for Koladeniya 
Hydropower (Private) Limited.        

11.5 Company

The Company is liable for income tax at the rate of 28% on taxable profit (2016 - 28%) based on the provisions of Inland 
Revenue Act.

11.6 Group

Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited

The Company has entered into an agreement with the Board of Investment of Sri Lanka under Section 17 of BOI Law No. 4 of 
1978 on 16th November 2010. In terms of the agreement :     

(a) The Company was entitled to a tax exemption period of 5 (five) years from the year in which the Company commences to make 
profits or not later than 2 (two) years from the date of commencement of commercial operations, which ever is earlier as may be 
specified in a certificate issued by the Board of Investment. This tax holiday ended on 31 December 2016.

(b) After the tax exemption period, the Company will be liable to tax on its trading profit at a concessionary rate of 10% for 2 years 
and at 20% thereafter.         
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12. INVENTORIES
Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Consumables  16,644,682  17,591,790  16,151,808  17,591,790 

Spares  14,138,357  12,645,343  12,784,002  12,645,343 

 30,783,039  30,237,133  28,935,810  30,237,133 

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Trade Debtors - Related Parties (Note 13.1)  49,832,674  226,897,916  20,177,022  214,748,040 

Other Debtors  1,030,271  1,060,617  884,871  940,417 

 50,862,945  227,958,533  21,061,893  215,688,457 

13.1 Trade Debtors - Related Parties

Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Bank of Ceylon (BOC)  20,177,022  214,748,040  20,177,022  214,748,040 

Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB)  29,655,652  12,149,876  -  - 

 49,832,674  226,897,916  20,177,022  214,748,040 

Terms and conditions in respect of related party receivables are given in Note 25.1 and 25.4

Other debtors are non interest bearing and are generally on 30 - 90 day terms.

14. ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS
Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Prepayments  7,168,870  6,393,983  6,881,050  5,992,313 

Advances  881,600  881,600  881,600  881,600 

 8,050,470  7,275,583  7,762,650  6,873,913 

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Group Company

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

15.1 Favourable Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

Cash and Bank Balances  9,746,756  7,179,015  11,590,527  5,542,784 

Repurchase Agreements and Fixed Deposits -  
   Three months or less than three months tenor  395,711,332 

 
1,280,812,438 

 
311,602,601 

 
1,225,097,535 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the
Purpose of Cash Flows Statement

 
405,458,088 

 
1,287,991,453  323,193,128 

 
1,230,640,319 
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16. STATED CAPITAL

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Stated Capital

Number of Ordinary Shares  66,000,000  66,000,000 

 66,000,000  66,000,000 

Value of Ordinary Shares  660,000,000  660,000,000 

 660,000,000  660,000,000 

17. RESERVES

Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

17.1 Capital Reserves

Capital Replacement Reserves  240,000,000  240,000,000  240,000,000  240,000,000 

 240,000,000  240,000,000  240,000,000  240,000,000 

17.2 General Reserves

General Reserves  95,000,000  95,000,000  95,000,000  95,000,000 

 95,000,000  95,000,000  95,000,000  95,000,000 

 335,000,000  335,000,000  335,000,000  335,000,000 

17.3 Available-For-Sale Reserves

Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,173,095,000  1,072,854,768  1,173,095,000  1,072,854,768 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Available-For-Sale Financial
   Assets

 
(63,987,000)  100,240,232  (63,987,000)  100,240,232 

Balance as at the end of the year  1,109,108,000  1,173,095,000  1,109,108,000  1,173,095,000 

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

(a) Capital Reserves

A total sum of Rs. 240 million has been transferred to the capital replacement reserves in order to provide for the replacement 
of Plant and Machinery.

(b) General Reserves

A total sum of Rs. 95 million has been transferred to the general reserves for a prospective investment in a project.

 (c) Available-For-Sale Reserves

This reserve records fair value changes on available-for-sale financial assets.
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18. DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITIES 
Group Company

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Retirement Benefit Obligation - Gratuity

Balance as at 1 January  16,378,079  16,927,660  16,228,367  16,741,221 

Charge for the year (Note 18.1)  3,513,461  3,175,390  3,455,902  3,097,935 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss Recognised  2,946,753  (1,145,276)  2,782,690  (1,031,094)

Payments made during the year  (2,678,523)  (2,579,695)  (2,678,523)  (2,579,695)

Balance as at 31 December  20,159,770  16,378,079  19,788,436  16,228,367 

18.1 Retirement Benefit Expense for the year ended 
31 December

Current Service Cost  1,465,080  1,482,625  1,427,357  1,423,813 

Interest Cost  2,048,381  1,692,765  2,028,545  1,674,122 

Retirement Benefit Expense for Plan Year Ending  3,513,461  3,175,390  3,455,902  3,097,935 

18.2 Messrs. Piyal S Goonetilleke and Associates Actuaries, carried out an actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan gratuity as 
of 31 December 2017, for the plan year 1 January to 31 December 2017. 

The principal assumptions used are as follows :
2017 2016

Discount rate assumed                  (%)   10.2 12.5

Salary increase per annum            (%) 8 8

Turnover                                         (%) 1.5 - 7 1.5 - 7

  - Gratuity is assumed to be paid immediately provided the participant has 5 years of service credit at the time of departure.

18.3 Sensitivity Analysis Disclosure

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation - Increase/ (Decrease)

Company

Discount Rate Future Salary Increases
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sensitivity Level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

As At 31 December 2017  (652,613)  694,442  594,648  (563,226)

As At 31 December 2016  (474,372)  503,487  431,108  (408,687)

The above Sensitivity analysis is performed on the same basis as the actuarial valuation on the measurement date. Sensitivity 
is done to find out how the liability changes when the discount rate is changed by plus or minus 0.5% and salary is changed by 
plus or minus 0.5%.
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18. DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITIES  (Cont...)

18.4 Expected average remaining future working life of the defined benefit plan obligation of Company at the end of the reporting 
period is 8.8 years (2016 - 8.2 years).         

Maturity profile of the retirement benefit obligations:

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation of Company is 7.58 years (2016 - 6.86 years). The expected 
maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement obligation:    

Group Company

2017
Rs. 

2016
Rs. 

2017
Rs. 

2016
Rs. 

Less than 1 year  690,236  705,480  673,470  702,376 

Between 1 – 3 years  2,259,458  1,300,395  2,210,415  1,260,597 

Between 3 – 5 years  3,744,076  5,772,297  3,207,084  5,720,882 

Between 5 – 10 years  13,229,465  11,760,384  13,064,594  11,606,726 

Total  19,923,235  19,538,556  19,155,563  19,290,581 

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2017
Rs. 

2016
Rs. 

2017
Rs. 

2016
Rs. 

Other Payables  4,961,740  6,161,027  4,961,740  5,388,406 

Sundry Creditors Including Accrued Expenses  27,422,872  40,400,292  23,989,070  38,480,047 

 32,384,612  46,561,319  28,950,810  43,868,453 

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities :

- Other trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 365 day terms.

- Sundry Creditors are non-interest bearing and have an average term of one month period.

20. DIVIDENDS PAYABLE

Group Company

2017 
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Dividends Payable 

-1995/1996 to 2015 Interim  &  Final Dividends
 -    14,226,774  -    14,226,774 

- 2011 to 2016 First & Final Dividends  13,234,878  -    13,234,878  -   

- 2016 First & Final Dividends  -    990,000,000  -    990,000,000 

 13,234,878 1,004,226,774  13,234,878  1,004,226,774 

20.1 Dividends Proposed and Paid 

Equity dividends on Ordinary Shares

During the year, the Company paid  a final dividend amounting to Rs. 990,000,000 (representing Rs. 15.00 per share) for the year 
ended 31 December 2016. (During the year ended 31 December 2016 Company declared and paid a final dividend amounting to 
Rs. 198,000,000 (representing Rs. 3.00 per share) relating to year ended 31 December 2015.)
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21. OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES AND ADJUSTMENTS
Group Company

21.1 Other Operating Income
2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Sundries   9,396,332  7,560,214  9,396,332  7,560,214 

Profit/(Loss) on Disposal of Property, Plant and    
   Equipment  28,439  (433,545)  17,790  (433,545)

 9,424,771  7,126,669  9,414,122  7,126,669 

Group Company

21.2 Finance Income
2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Interest Income on Repurchase Agreements  6,890,060  23,722,719  6,204,189  19,599,053 

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits  170,273,499  147,102,950  145,556,007  134,421,434 

Interest Income on Treasury Bills  -    337,906  -    337,906 

Interest Income on Debentures  22,860,219  19,920,113  22,860,219  19,920,113 

Interest on Employee Loans  386,932  416,815  386,932  416,815 

Dividend Income from Equity Securities  19,196,915  38,392,898  19,196,915  38,392,898 

Dividend Income from Subsidiary  -    -    39,060,000  -   

 219,607,625  229,893,401  233,264,262  213,088,219 

Total Other Operating and Finance Income  229,032,396  237,020,070  242,678,384  220,214,888 

21.3 Depreciation/Amortisation/Costs of Inventories and Expenses included in the Consolidated Comprehensive Income 
Statement

Group Company

2017
Rs. 

2016
Rs. 

2017
Rs. 

2016
Rs. 

Depreciation and Amortisation  56,121,080  53,398,283  41,107,683  38,430,533 

Included in Direct Expenses

Maintenance Expenses  30,790,087  24,824,310  29,472,702  22,631,405 

Inventory write off/(add back)  3,753  1,292,329  2,826  1,292,329 

Included in Administrative and Other Operating 

Directors’  Emoluments  835,000  1,990,000  710,000  1,660,000 

Auditor’s Fees  350,000  743,421  200,000  593,421 

Fee and Expenses for Non Audit Services       -    30,600     -    30,600 

Profit/(Loss) on Disposal of Property, Plant and
   Equipment

 
28,439 

 
(433,545)

 
17,790 

 
(433,545)

Consultancy Fees – Maintenance and Administration  15,487,115  3,696,855  15,164,973  3,062,443 

Community Services  6,633,941  1,578,723     -         -   

21.4 Employee Benefit Expenses

Wages and salaries  57,302,449  56,309,422  52,936,355  52,618,867 

Post-Employment Benefits  - Gratuity  3,513,461  3,175,390  3,455,902  3,097,935 

Defined Benefit Plan Costs - EPF and ETF  10,966,189  10,732,881  10,356,706  10,252,535 

Other Allowance and Benefits  45,208,283  42,765,972  39,141,220  36,948,106 

Total Employee Benefit Expenses  116,990,382  112,983,665  105,890,183  102,917,443 
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE

22.1 Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year and the previous year are adjusted for events that have changed the number of ordinary shares 
outstanding. 

22.2  The following reflects the income and share data used in the Basic Earnings per Share computations. 

Group Company

Amount used as the Numerator :
2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Net Profit  484,265,253  467,817,260  469,936,514  415,723,228 

Net profit attributable to Ordinary Shareholders for 
Basic Earnings per share

 
484,265,253 

 
467,817,260 

 
469,936,514 

 
415,723,228 

Number of Ordinary Shares used as Denominator : 

2017
Number

2016
Number

2017
Number

2016
Number

Weighted Average number of Ordinary Shares in issue
   applicable to Basic Earnings per share

 
66,000,000 

 
66,000,000 

 
66,000,000 

 
66,000,000 

Earnings per share - Basic 7.34 7.09 7.12 6.30

23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

23.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments

The Company has capital expenditure commitments amounting to approximately Rs. 3.32 million as at the reporting date 
and there are no significant capital expenditure commitments in respect of Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited as at the 
reporting date ( 2016 - There are no significant capital expenditure commitments in respect of both Property Development PLC 
and Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited).

23.2 Contingencies

On the basis of the guarantee given by Property Development PLC (PDL), Bank of Ceylon issued a Lease Security (i.e. 
guarantee) for sum of rupees 5.31 million to Koladeniya Hydropower (Private) Limited (KHP) to secure the due performance of 
KHP in terms of the indenture of lease entered into between KHP and Mahaweli Authority of Sri Lanka.

24. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

A decision has been made by the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on 09 February 2018, to De-List  the Company from 
the Official List of the Colombo Stock Exchange, subject to approval of the Shareholders and the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Sri Lanka.

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Details of significant Related Party disclosures are as follows :

25.1 Transactions with Related Parties

Related Parties include entities that are affiliated to the entity.

Transaction with Parent, Subsidiary and Other Affiliates

The following table provides the significant amount of transactions, which have been entered into with related party for the 
relevant financial year and  outstanding balances as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd…)

Company / 
Bank

Relationship Nature of Transactions Terms and Conditions Security Group Company

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

Bank of 
Ceylon 
(BOC)

Parent Rent Received / Receivables 
with taxes  

Rental calculated 
as agreed between 
parties per sq.ft. per 
month. Rent shall  be 
reviewed at the end 
of every three years.

N/A 817,394,235 699,749,552 817,394,235 699,749,552 

Rent Deposit Received /
Receivables  31 December 

Shall be refunded 
without interest upon 
the cessation of the 
agreement.

348,281,022 348,281,022  348,281,022 348,281,022 

Fuel Deposit 31 December  907,500  907,500  907,500  907,500 

Reimbursement of Expenses 
and Overheads - Received / 
receivable 

On the basis of price 
agreed between 
parties.

N/A  144,725,657  164,449,942  144,725,657  164,449,942 

Arrears of rental income with 
taxes 

Tenancy Agreement 
entered into between
PDL and BOC

N/A  -    105,334,309  -    105,334,309 

Arrears of rental deposit  -    89,763,150  -    89,763,150 

Repurchase Agreements as  
at 31 December

43,900,000 92,900,000  37,800,000  78,800,000 

Fixed Deposits as at 31 
December

Transactions on an 
arm’s length basis.

N/A 1,619,560,000 1,866,200,000 1,387,560,000 1,661,200,000

Interest Income (Treasury  
Bills, Repos and FD’s)

177,163,559 171,163,575 151,760,196 154,358,393

Bank Balance held as at 31 
December 

16,146,322 13,468,457 13,595,223 11,898,045

Letters of Credits opened Transactions on an 
arm’s length basis. 
Limit Rs 5 Mn.

Repurchased 
Agreement Ref. 
No. 1020848  
for sum of  
Rs. 82,800,000 
and Fixed Deposit 
Ref.No.78574886 
for sum of  
Rs. 80,000,000

40,481,620  
LC value  
USD 268,300

40,481,620 
LC value  
USD 268,300

Debentures as at 31 
December 

 200,000,000  200,000,000  200,000,000  200,000,000 

Interest Income  
(Debentures) 

At a floating nominal 
rate of interest 
equivalent to fifty 
basis points above 
the weighted average 
six months treasury 
bill interest rate.

N/A  22,860,219  19,920,113  22,860,219  19,920,113 

Dividends Paid  First & Final 
(Gross) 

As recommended 
by the Board 
and approved by 
Shareholders.

N/A  945,974,355  189,194,871  945,974,355  189,194,871 

Dividends Payable First & 
Final 2016  (Gross) 

As approved by the 
Board of Directors.

N/A  -    945,974,355  -    945,974,355 

Koladeniya 
Hydropower 
(Private) 
Limited 
(KHP)

Subsidiary Dividends Received  First & 
Final 2016 (Net) 

As recommended 
by the Board and 
approved by 
Shareholder.

N/A  -    -    39,060,000  -   

The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (2016 - Nil).

Transactions with all related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of the business on an arm’s length basis.
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES ( Contd…)

25.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel of the Company or Parent 

 The key management personnel of the Company are the members of its Board of Directors.

Group Company
2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

2017
 Rs. 

2016
 Rs. 

Key Management Personnel Compensation

Directors' Emoluments  835,000  1,990,000  710,000  1,660,000 

25.3 Transaction with Other Related Parties

There are no significant amount of transactions, which have been Group/Company entered into with other related parties for the 
relevant financial year.

          

25.4 Transactions with the Government of Sri Lanka and its Related Entities

Since the Government of Sri Lanka directly controls the Group’s ultimate parent, the Group has considered the Government of 
Sri Lanka and other entities which are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the Government of Sri Lanka as 
Related Parties according to LKAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures”.     

The Group enters into transactions, arrangements and agreements with the Government of Sri Lanka and its related entities and 
significant transactions have been reported where applicable.  

Further, transaction as detailed below, relating to the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis, are entered into with 
the Government of Sri Lanka and its related entities:     

Payments of statutory rates, taxes.  

Payment for utilities mainly comprising of telephone, electricity and water.

Payment for employment retirement benefit – EPF and ETF.  

Payment for insurance premiums to Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation.

The following table provides the significant amount of transactions and arrangements entered into by the Group/Company with 
the Government of Sri Lanka and related entities for the relevant financial year.   

Institution Nature of  
Transactions

Terms and 
Conditions

Security Group Company
2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2017
Rs.

2016
Rs.

Ceylon 
Electricity 
Board (CEB)

Payment of 
electricity bills

Transactions  on an 
arm’s length basis.

N/A 130,978,960 126,837,872 130,745,756 126,612,815 

Revenue 
received for 
value of energy 
delivered 

Power purchase 
Agreement entered into 
between KHP and CEB.

N/A 88,427,927 75,767,005 -    -   

Security 
Deposit

As per the Sri Lanka 
Electricity Act, No. 20 
of 2009.

N/A 21,000,000 21,000,000  21,000,000 21,000,000 

Municipal 
Treasurer’s 
Department

Payment of 
municipal rates

As per the Municipal 
Council Ordinance.

N/A 49,896,000 49,896,000 49,896,000 49,896,000 

Sri Lanka 
Insurance 
Corporation 
(SLIC)

Payment of 
insurance 
premiums

Transactions  on an 
arm’s length basis.

N/A  18,905,770 15,859,582  18,876,129  15,859,582 

Mahaweli 
Authority of Sri 
Lanka (MASL)

Payment of 
Royalty fee

Agreement entered into 
between KHP and 
MASL.

N/A  5,299,222  4,524,120  -    -   

The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (2016 - Nil).

Transactions with all related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of the business on an arm’s length basis.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  

The group is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise, 
trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support  the Group’s operations. The 
Group’s principle financial assets comprise loan and other receivables, trade and other receivables and cash and short-term 
deposits that arrive directly from its operations. The Group also holds available-for-sale investments.  

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management 
of these risks by determining appropriate procedures.  

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees the procedures for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

26.1 Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 
affect the Group’s income or the value of it’s holdings of financial Instruments. Financial instruments affected by market risk 
include loans and receivables, Investments, payables, deposits and available-for-sale investments.  

26.1.1 Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. The Group has no significant exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates other than 
investment  made in five year debentures of Bank of Ceylon at a floating nominal rate of interest. All other investments are 
made in short term Government securities and Fixed Deposits with government banks at fixed interest rates.  

26.1.2 Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has no foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities at the year end that 
expose to currency risk as settlements or receipts were done at spot rate.  

26.1.3 Commodity Price Risk 

The risk of change in the prices of commodities would not have any material impact which would have a significant effect on 
the profit margins of the Group.  

26.1.4 Equity Price Risk 

The Group’s listed equity securities are susceptible to equity price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the 
investment securities. The Group holds listed equity securities in Lanka Hospitals Corporation PLC as a strategic investment 
and review whether the market price at each reporting period has significantly fallen down below its cost of investments.

At the reporting date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was Rs.1,322,398,000. A decrease of 10% on equity 
price could have an impact of approximately Rs.132,239,800 on the equity attributable to the Group, depending on whether 
or not the decline is significant or prolonged. An increase of 10% in the value of the listed securities would only impact equity, 
but would not have an effect on profit or loss.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd...)

26.2 Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 
to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily for trade receivables and from its 
investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions.  

Amount exposed
2017 2016

Group
Rs.

Company
Rs.

Group
Rs.

Company
Rs.

Trade and Other Receivables  50,862,945  21,061,893 227,958,533  215,688,457 

Loans to Employees  3,201,878  3,201,878  4,519,353  4,519,353 

The Group invests its funds from operating activities in government securities, Fixed Deposits and in Debentures with 
government banks and therefore minimum credit risk is involved. 

Credit quality of above categories of financial assets is assumed to be high based on the past trend of receiving its obligations 
with in the agreed time period.      

There are no financial assets with renegotiated terms of repayments.

There are no financial assets that are past due/impaired.

There are no collaterals held for each category of above financial assets.

26.3 Liquidity Risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds as a part of its working capital management process. The management 
believes that access to sources of funding is sufficiently available for the Group due to high level of credibility maintain in its 
operations.

 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended 31 December 2017
On

demand
Rs.

Less than
3 months

Rs.

3 to 12
months

Rs.

1 to 5
years
Rs.

> 5 years

Rs.

Total

Rs.

Group

Trade and Other Payables  -    27,422,872  4,961,740  -    -    32,384,612 

Company 

Trade and Other Payables  -    23,989,070  4,961,740  -    -    28,950,810 

26.4 Capital Management 

Capital includes total equity attributable to the parent and minority shareholders.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating  and healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and 
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may 
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders.

No changes were made in the objective, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 December 2016 
and 2017. 
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27. SEGMENT INFORMATION

27.1 With third parties

 (a) Year Ended 31 December 2017

 Rental
Income 

 Rs. 

 Hire of 
Power Plant 

 Rs. 

 Total 
Segments 

 Rs. 

 Adjustments 
and 

Eliminations 
 Rs. 

Consolidated

 
Rs. 

Revenue

External Customers  710,777,596  88,427,927  799,205,523  -  799,205,523 

Total Revenue  710,777,596  88,427,927  799,205,523  -  799,205,523 

Income/(Expenses)

Other  Operating and Finance Income  242,678,384  25,414,012  268,092,396  (39,060,000)  229,032,396 

Direct Expenses  (141,275,689)  (8,867,335)  (150,143,024)  -    (150,143,024)

Staff Costs  (105,890,183)  (11,100,199)  (116,990,382)  -    (116,990,382)

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  (41,107,683)  (15,157,805)  (56,265,488)  144,408  (56,121,080)

Administrative and Other Operating 
  Expenses  (38,247,970)  (9,130,643)  (47,378,613)  -    (47,378,613)

Income Tax Expense  (156,997,941)  (12,001,626)  (168,999,567)  (4,340,000)  (173,339,567)

Segment Profit  469,936,514  57,584,331  527,520,845  (43,255,592)  484,265,253 

Total Assets  4,073,519,033  489,517,149 4,563,036,182  (220,319,488)    4,342,716,694 

Total Liabilities  596,008,324  36,386,849  632,395,173  -    632,395,173 

Other Disclosures

Capital Expenditure - Additions  13,914,395  460,853  14,375,248  -    14,375,248 

 (b) Year Ended 31 December 2016

 Rental 
Income 

 Rs. 

 Hire of  
Power Plant 

 Rs. 

 Total 
Segments 

 Rs. 

 Adjustments 
and 

Eliminations 
 Rs. 

Consolidated

 Rs. 

Revenue

External Customers  619,182,545  75,767,005  694,949,550  -  694,949,550 

Total Revenue  619,182,545  75,767,005  694,949,550  -  694,949,550 

Income/(Expenses)

Other  Operating and Finance Income  220,214,888  16,805,182  237,020,070  -    237,020,070 

Direct Expenses  (111,279,409)  (8,797,645)  (120,077,054)  -    (120,077,054)

Staff Costs  (102,917,443)  (10,066,222)  (112,983,665)  -    (112,983,665)

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  (38,430,533)  (15,112,158)  (53,542,691)  144,408  (53,398,283)

Administrative and Other Operating 
  Expenses

 
(25,926,144)

 
(3,838,743)

 
(29,764,887)

 
-

 
(29,764,887)

Income Tax Expense  (145,120,676)  (2,807,795)  (147,928,471) -    (147,928,471)

Segment Profit  415,723,228  51,949,624  467,672,852  144,408  467,817,260 

Total Assets  4,659,695,912    466,630,601    5,126,326,513    (220,463,896)    4,905,862,617 

Total Liabilities  1,594,341,403      27,536,975    1,621,878,378              -      1,621,878,378 

Other Disclosures

Capital Expenditure - Additions  63,849,260  64,831  63,914,091  -    63,914,091 
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1. STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

 The issued ordinary shares of Property Development PLC are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.

2. ANALYSIS OF ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 Total number of shareholders as at 31 December 2017 was 3,388

Range of Shareholding Resident Non-Resident
No of 

Shareholders No of Shares % No of 
Shareholders No of Shares %

1 - 1,000        2,977       563,784     0.85           49    20,334      0.03

1,001 - 10,000           319    1,051,763     1.59             7    36,667      0.06

10,001 - 100,000             30       763,028     1.16             2    45,320      0.07

100,001 - 1,000,000               3       454,147     0.69             -        -        -

1,000,001 - Above               1  63,064,957   95.55             -        -        -

Total        3,330  65,897,679 99.84           58 102,321 0.16

 Categories of Ordinary Shares

  Category Resident Non-Resident
No of 

Shareholders No of Shares % No of 
Shareholders No of Shares %

Individual          3,269     2,101,137     3.18 58  102,321       0.16 

Institutional               61 63,796,542 96.66 - -     -

Total     3,330   65,897,679 99.84 58 102,321 0.16

INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
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3. SHARE INFORMATION

3.1 Major Shareholders as at 31 December 2017 2016

Name No. of
Shares

% No. of
Shares

%

1 Bank of Ceylon 63,064,957 95.55 63,064,957 95.55

2 Allnatt Investments (Pvt) Ltd 236,776 0.36 236,776 0.36

3 People’s Leasing & Finance PLC / 
   Dr H S D Soysa & Mrs G Soysa

114,041 0.17 -            -

4 People’s Leasing & Finance PLC / L P Hapangama 103,330 0.16 40,866 0.06

5 Mrs Weerasinghe N 100,000 0.15 100,000 0.15

6 Mrs Gomes N I 79,000 0.12 79,000 0.12

7 Public Trustee of Sri Lanka 60,000 0.09 60,000 0.09

8 Mr Kamardeen M T 36,000 0.05 36,000 0.05

9 People’s Leasing & Finance PLC / L H L M P Haradasa 35,269 0.05           - -

10 Mr Woordward (Deceased) H W M 33,500 0.05 33,500 0.05

11 People’s Leasing & Finance PLC / C D 
   Kohombanwickramage 32,890 0.05 - -

12 Est. of late Fernando M D H 28,000 0.04 28,000 0.04

13 Mr Amerasinghe S N 24,800 0.04 24,800 0.04

14 Dr De Silva B G S 24,000 0.04 24,000 0.04

15 Mr Vasanji K K 23,800 0.04 23,800 0.04

16 Mr Hettiarachchi D J N 22,273 0.03 22,273 0.03

17 Mrs Jafferjee Z T 22,150 0.03 22,150 0.03

18 Asha Financial Services Limited / Mr C N Pakianathan 21,790 0.03 - -

19 Moors Islamic Culture Home 20,600 0.03 20,600 0.03

20 Welgama Investments Limited 20,000 0.03 - -

3.2 Issued and fully paid number of Ordinary Shares as at 31 December 2017 stands at 66,000,000.

3.3 All the shares issued are voting shares and there are no Non-voting shares.

3.4 % of shares held by the Public other than Bank of Ceylon as at 31 December 2017 - 4.45%.

3.5 Total Number of public shareholders - 3,387.

3.6 During the past 10 years, no funds were raised through and IPO/Rights or Debenture issue. Hence, during the year any material 
changes in the use of such funds does not arise.

2017 2016

Market Values
Lowest
Highest
Last Transaction

  Rs.  72.00
  Rs.115.00
  Rs.  97.00

(03.03.2017)
(02.01.2017)
(29.12.2017)

Rs.  69.00
Rs.114.00
Rs.104.50

 (20.12.2016)
 (25.05.2016)
 (30.12.2016)

Share Trading
No of Transactions
No of Shares traded
Value of Shares traded (Rs)

1,056
352,574

30,734,883

500
434,887

37,690,249

Dividends
First & Final (Rs)
Dividend Payout Ratio (%)

3.50
49.16

15.00
238.14

Earnings
Earnings per Share (Rs)
Net asset value per Share (Rs)

7.12
52.69

6.30
46.44
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3.7   Non-Compliance with Listing Rule 7.13.1 as at 31 December 2017

   

Float Adjusted Market  
Capitalisation

Rs.

Public Holding
%

No of 
Shareholders

Option

284,889,000 4.45 3,387 Not Complied

4.  LEASEHOLD PROPERTY DETAILS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
 
  

Location Land Extent Fair Value
Rs.

BOC Square, No.01, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha,
Colombo 01

A1-R2-P37.702 5,500,000,000
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2017

Rs.’000

2016

Rs.’000

2015

Rs.’000

2014

Rs.’000

2013

Rs.’000

2012

Rs.’000

Turnover 799,206 694,950 624,822 619,133 585,899 540,878

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 657,605 615,746 537,737 567,302 579,744 472,434

Taxation (173,340) (147,928) (122,345) (160,086) (148,929) (124,276)

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 484,265 467,817 415,392 407,215 430,815 348,158

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (66,138) 101,085 263,653 158,784 33,342 (276,592)

Profit/(Loss) Brought Forward 1,115,889 1,835,227 1,732,471 1,524,740 1,269,810 1,089,450

Other Components of Equity Brought Forward 1,173,095 1,072,855 810,803 650,535 622,807 897,951

Retained Profit/(Loss) Carried Forward 1,606,214 1,115,889 1,835,227 1,732,471 1,524,740 1,269,810

Other Components of Equity Carried Forward 1,109,108 1,173,095 1,072,855 810,803 650,535 622,807

Investment Property 653,933 685,246 657,829 674,586 682,370 711,590

Property, Plant and Equipment 288,142 301,107 321,389 327,102 319,644 330,835

Intangible Assets 26,134 23,722 23,722 23,722 23,722 23,722

Other Non-Current Financial Assets 1,529,357 1,594,597 1,492,737 1,229,370 865,527 851,597

Other Assets 26,208 26,208 26,208 20,708 20,708 5,208

Deferred Tax Assets 5,578 4,673 5,816 6,186 14,002 5,860

Current Assets 1,813,365 2,270,309 1,871,528 1,766,125 1,730,338 1,391,005

Current Liabilities 132,196 1,125,068 88,389 100,979 101,122 93,088

Non-Current Liabilities 500,199 496,810 407,758 408,546 384,915 339,112

Net Assets 3,710,322 3,283,984 3,903,082 3,538,274 3,170,275 2,887,617

Stated Capital 660,000 660,000 660,000 660,000 660,000 660,000

Reserves 335,000 335,000 335,000 335,000 335,000 335,000

Retained Earnings 1,606,214 1,115,889 1,835,227 1,732,471 1,524,740 1,269,810

Other Components of Equity 1,109,108 1,173,095 1,072,855 810,803 650,535 622,807

Shareholders’ Funds 3,710,322 3,283,984 3,903,082 3,538,274 3,170,275 2,887,617

Earnings Per Share (Rs) 7.34 7.09 6.29 6.17 6.53 5.27

Net Asset Per Share (Rs) 56.22 49.76 59.14 53.61 48.03 43.75

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
SIX YEAR SUMMARY - GROUP
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FORM OF PROXY
I / We…………………..……………………………………………………………………...........……………………………….....

of…………………………………………………………………………………………………….........…………………...being a

member / members of Property Development PLC, hereby appoint …………………….............………...………….............

……………………………………………………………...........…………………………………………………………………. of

…………………………………………………………...........………………………………………………………………………

or failing him / her any one of the Directors as my / our proxy, to represent me/us, to speak and vote on a show of hands 
or on a poll for me / us and on my/our behalf at the Thirty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held 
on 30 May 2018 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof. I / We 
the undersigned hereby authorise my / our Proxy to vote on my / our behalf in accordance with the preference indicated 
below:
 

For Against

1 To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors and the Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the Report of the 
Auditors thereon.

2 The Auditor General to be Auditor of the Company according to the 19th 
amendment to the Constitution of Sri Lanka.

3 To approve the donations and contributions made by the Directors during the 
year under review and to authorise the Board to determine donations and 
contributions for the ensuring year.

4 To appoint Mr K K U Wijeyesekera, as a Director of the company who retires in 
terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

5 To declare a First & Final Dividend of Rs.3.50 per share for the year ended 31 
December 2017. 

 

Signed this …………………………………. day of ………………………. 2018

…………………………………….

                  Signature/s

Please read the notes and instructions on the reverse of the Form of Proxy
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NOTES AND INSTRUCTIONS AS TO
COMPLETION OF THE FORM OF PROXY

1. In terms of Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and

( i )  in the case of an individual shall be signed by the appointor or by his attorney; and ( ii ) in the case of a 
corporation shall be either under its common seal or signed by its attorney or by an officer on behalf of the 
corporation.

( ii )  in the case of a corporation shall be either under its common seal or signed by its attorney or by an officer 
on behalf of the corporation.

 The Company may, but shall not be bound to, require evidence of the authority of any such attorney or officer. A 
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. In terms of Article 73 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

 Any Corporation which is a member of the Company, may by resolution of its Directors or other governing body 
authorise such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the Company or of any class of 
members of the Company and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf 
of such Corporation as the Corporation could exercise if it were an individual member of the Company.

3. In terms of Article 69 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be lodged and the power of attorney (if any) under which it is signed or 
a notarially certified copy thereof shall if required be deposited for inspection, at the office, in each case not less 
than forty eight hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting, or in the case of 
a poll 48 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll at which the person named in the instrument 
proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

4. In terms of Article 63 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

 In the case of the joint-holders of a share the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy or by 
attorney or by representative, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint-holders, and for 
this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members in 
respect of the joint-holding.

5. To be valid this Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, Property Development 
PLC at Floor 19, Bank of Ceylon Headquarters Building, BOC Square, No.01, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha, Colombo 
01, before 3.00 p.m. on 28 May 2018 being 48 hours before the holding of the meeting.

6. Perfect the Form of Proxy by filling in all necessary details legibly in capital letters, signing and dating. Every 
alteration or addition to the Form of Proxy must be duly authenticated by the full signature of the shareholder 
signing the Form of Proxy. Such signature should as far as possible be placed in proximity to the alteration or 
addition intended to be authenticated.
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